BANYULE CRICKET CLUB INC.

Reg No. A0008112 Z ABN 76 525 133 707 www.banyulecc.com.au



ANNUAL REPORT and STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS SEASON 2021 – 2022

MR. P.J.CARGIN HON. TREASURER

MR. G.G.CLAPTON PRESIDENT

MR. P.J.BARNES HON. SECRETARY

TABLE OF CONTENTS

OFFICIALS AND OFFICE-BEARERS	3
PRESIDENT'S REPORT	5
TREASURER'S REPORT	7
SENIOR TROPHY WINNERS 2021-2022 AND CONGRATULATIONS	10
APPRECIATIONS	11
OFF THE FIELD	11
THE CLUB CHAMPIONS	12
THE GRAEME RENSHAW MEDAL	12
COACH'S REPORT	13
BOARD OF MANAGEMENT - PLAYING REPORTS	14
DVCA VETERANS REPORT	18
BANYULE 1 ST XI (Barclay Shield) – Played 14, Won 5, Drawn 1 Lost 8 (8th)	19
BANYULE 2 nd XI (B Grade) – Played 16, Won 11, Lost 5 (3 rd)	20
BANYULE 3 rd XI (C Grade) – Played 13, Won 4, Lost 9 (8 th)	21
BANYULE 4 th XI (F1 Grade) – Played 15, Won 9, Lost 6 (3rd)	22
BANYULE 5 th XI (F3 Grade) - Played 13, Won 3, Lost 10 (7th)	23
BANYULE 6 th XI (G2 Grade) - Played 12, Won 1, Lost 11 (8 th)	24
JUNIOR SECTION (SUMMARY & AWARDS)	25
IN2CRICKET / WOOLWORTHS CRICKET BLAST PROGRAM	32
APPENDIX – BANYULE HISTORY & AWARD WINNERS	33
APPENDIX - BANYULE CLUB RECORDS	37
APPENDIX - SPONSORS	41

MEDIA CHANNELS

Website: www.banyulecc.com.au

Facebook (Main Club): www.facebook.com/Banyulecc

Facebook (Cricket Blast): www.facebook.com/bearscricketblast

Twitter: twitter.com/Crazy Bears
Email: banyulecricketclub@gmail.com

Cover – James McIntyre lifts the ball towards leg during a C Grade game. Photo courtesy of Ralph Kernaghan.



OFFICIALS AND OFFICE-BEARERS

President Mr. G.G. Clapton

Honorary Secretary Mr. P.J. Barnes (Ph 0410 663 541)

Honorary Treasurer Mr. P.J. Cargin

Vice President / Chairman Bar Mr. L.A. Willoughby

MyCricket Co-ordinator & Chairman Match Mr. B.A. Oliver

Media Officer Mr. M.P. Delaney

Facilities & Council Co-ordinator Mr B.D. Bowler

Social Co-ordinator Mr. C. Lennox

Club Welfare Officer & Woolworths Blast

Co-ordinator

Mr. S.M. Pinner

Committee Members Mr. N.P. Murray

Mr. S.D. Butler Mr. C.A. Hunniford

Junior Co-ordinator Mr. T.J. Braddy

Junior Secretary Mr. J.G. McIntyre

Veterans Co-ordinator Mr. G.R. Place

Coach & First XI Captain Mr. D.A. Pybus / Mr. N.P. Murray

Senior XI Captains Mr. R.C. Batchelder (2nds)

Mr. J.G. McIntyre (3rds) Mr. M.P. Delaney (4ths) Mr. A.D. Howell (5ths) Mr. J.A. Marks (6ths)

Life MembersG. StottT.P. Veal(* - Deceased)J. BarberM.J. FraumanoD. Johnston*N.P. Butterworth*

G. Cross
L. Drayton
G.D. Russell
M.N. Anderson*
G.N. Chapman
G.D. Renshaw
D. Richmond*
J.D. Veal
H. Anderson (Mrs)
B.D. Bowler
G.D. Russell
W.L. Gibson
D.R. Veal
F.J. Barnes
S.D. Butler
I.J. Butler (Mrs)
M.F. Phillips

H. Anderson (Mrs)
G.J. Anderson
G.W. Anderson
G.W. Anderson
R. Gill*
S. Smith*
J. Richmond (Mrs)*
A. Dalziel

M.F. Phillips
G.P. Barnes
G.P. Barnes
G.P. Barnes
D.P. Butterworth
F. Chowdary
G.G. Clapton

A. Dalziel G.G. Clapton
B.L. Russell P.A. Davis
R.J. Lloyd M.F. Harte
D. Veal (Mrs)* M.J. Veal*
R.J. Butler* L.A. Willoughby
G.R. Place S.M. Pinner

L. Richmond (Miss)* S.G. Clapton

	BANYU	LE CRICKET C	LUB – OFFICE B	EARERS (Since 1972/73)
Year	President	Secretary	Treasurer	Captain/Coach
1972-73	M.N. Anderson	F. Scott	G. Cross	M.N. Anderson
1973-74	M.N. Anderson	D. Richmond	S. Smith	R. Gurney
1974-75	M.N. Anderson	D. Richmond	S. Smith	M. Oldis
1975-76	M.N. Anderson	D. Richmond	S. Smith	G.D. Renshaw
1976-77	A. Henderson	D. Richmond	D. Johnston	G.D. Renshaw
1977-78	D. Johnston	D. Richmond	P. Scown	G.D. Renshaw
1978-79	J.D. Veal	D. Richmond	P. Caton	R. Gill
1979-80	J.D. Veal	D. Richmond	P. Caton	R.J. Lloyd
1980-81	J.D. Veal	D. Richmond	P. Caton	R.J. Lloyd
1981-82	A. Dalziel	D. Richmond	P. Caton	R.J. Lloyd
1982-83	A. Dalziel	D. Richmond	M.J. Fraumano	R.J. Lloyd
1983-84	G.D. Renshaw	D. Richmond	M.J. Fraumano	R.J. Lloyd
1984-85	G.D. Renshaw	D. Richmond	M.J. Fraumano	R.J. Lloyd
1985-86	N.P. Butterworth	D. Richmond	M.J. Fraumano	G.W. Anderson
1986-87	N.P. Butterworth	D. Richmond	M.J. Fraumano	G.W. Anderson
		D. Richmond	M.J. Fraumano	G.W. Anderson
1988-89	R.J. Lloyd	D. Richmond	T.P. Veal	G.J. Anderson
1989-90	J.D. Veal	D. Richmond	M.J. Veal	G.J. Anderson
1990-91	J.D. Veal	D. Richmond	M.J. Veal	G.J. Anderson
1991-92	J.D. Veal	D. Richmond	D.M. Gazzola	G.J. Anderson
1992-93	N.P.Butterworth	D. Richmond	D.M. Gazzola	G.J. Anderson / R.D. McKinlay
1993-94	N.P.Butterworth		D.M. Gazzola	R.D. McKinlay
			D.M. Gazzola	R.D. McKinlay
				R.D. McKinlay
-		D. Richmond	D. Rumble	J. Canestra
	G.R. Place		D. Rumble	G.J. Anderson
	G.R. Place			G.J. Anderson
	G.R. Place		M.F. Phillips	A. Gannon
-				P.J. Barnes / A. Gannon
-	G.J. Anderson		M.F. Phillips	B.L. O'Connor
				B.L. O'Connor
	G.J. Anderson			B.L. O'Connor
	G.J. Anderson		M.F. Phillips	P.J. Barnes / A. Gannon
	G.J. Anderson		M.F. Phillips	M.A. Butera
-	G.J. Anderson			M.A. Butera
	•		D.P.Butterworth	J.N. Wilson
-	M.F. Phillips		D.P.Butterworth	J.N. Wilson/ B.L. O'Connor/ D.P.Butterworth
				B.L. O'Connor / D.L. Barnes
	•			B.L. O'Connor / L.D. Dahl
	•		D.P.Butterworth	J.N. Wilson / L.D. Dahl
	M.J. Asbury		D.P.Butterworth	G.D. Butterworth
	M.J. Asbury	P.J. Barnes	S.G. Clapton	J.N. Wilson / G.D. Butterworth
		P.J. Barnes	'	G.D. Butterworth / R.J. Hartnett
		P.J. Barnes	S.G. Clapton	R.J. Hartnett
		P.J. Barnes	S.G. Clapton	R.J. Hartnett
-	•	P.J. Barnes	S.G. Clapton	R.J. Hartnett
	•	P.J. Barnes		H.E. Tyler
		P.J. Barnes		H.E. Tyler
	•	P.J. Barnes	·	H.E. Tyler
2021-22	G.G. Clapton	P.J. Barnes	P.J. Cargin	D.A. Pybus / N.P. Murray

PRESIDENT'S REPORT

Let's go back to the end of the 20/21 season where we were on the hunt for a new coach and captain. We were steered in the direction of experienced coach Darren Pybus, and after our first meeting it was clear we shared a common philosophy and that Darren was the correct fit for our club. It is also pleasing that Darren has agreed to continue into the 2022/23 season.

Our focus was then toward the appointment of our first grade captain and after much consideration Nick Murray was the chosen one. It was recognised it was an appointment that would provide some frustrations at times, as Nick would be learning the role as he developed through the year. We are confident that Darren and Nick will create a partnership that will develop into positive results for our club and the individual players.

We once again fielded 6 senior,18 junior and 2 Vets teams but most pleasing was the introduction of our first ever girls team that was looked after by Steve Pinner and Aaron Lambert. The girls had a great year just missing out on finals and from all reports they enjoyed themselves and are looking forward to getting back into it next season.

The DVCA had indicated preseason that it would be hoping to schedule a normal season with 2 day and 1 day fixtures games but unfortunately Covid impacted the season and a 1 day fixtured season was once again thrusted upon us. Hopefully 2022-23 sees a return to normal cricket.

Whilst the season may not have produced the success we have become accustomed to, it did provide other on field successes. We had a number of first grade debuts and the success of a number of juniors that were exposed to senior Cricket also occurring. Others had the opportunity to play alongside their parents.

A big thank you to Tim Braddy our Junior Co-Ordinator and all the junior coaches and team managers on another successful season. Our junior program is the envy of many DVCA clubs and without their commitment we would be unable to sustain the numbers and therefore offer the opportunities to take part in the great game of cricket. This culminated in an U12 Blue premiership flag.

The Child Safety Framework for Children and Young People to which Banyule Cricket Club was one of the first clubs within the DVCA to adopt and endorse was introduced. Our involvement was acknowledged by CV for our clubs commitment to providing a safe environment for our children and young players. This shall be continued to be developed as CA introduce updates and changes.

As always being a community not for profit club we value the financial support by our club partners and we truly thank them for their ongoing support. Thank you to our partners Physiolife, Bonola Automotive, Kutrize Hair, Kennedy Air & Plumbing, The Greenery Home & Garden Centre, Placebuilt, Kookaburra, Kavair & MSC Signs. You make operating the largest club in the Heidelberg area that much easier. I must also acknowledge the Victorian State Government, Cricket Australia and Cricket Victoria for its support in making grants funding available and Banyule City Council for their ongoing assistance.

We were fortunate to be able to run a CPR/ Defibrillator course with 14 people associated with the club gaining the skills that hopefully they will never have to use. This course was made available via a Victorian Govt Grant engaging Real Response to deliver the training.

I must thank the members of the committee for their work but especially those that form part of the executive. At times they are the ones that are needed to make the tough and sometimes unpopular decisions. These decisions are made with the clubs best interests at the forefront as we strive to build on a culture that we will be proud of.

An extra thankyou to Thea Oliver for providing assistance to new Treasurer Peter Cargin and to Meagan Pinner for her work with merchandise sales and dealing with Kookaburra to provide our quality apparel. This year saw the club invest in capital expenditures that will benefit the players and supporters and we hope to build on this as time goes by.

Next year we're expecting to be relocating teams that play on the Beverley Rd oval to most likely Banyule Flats as Council take on the task of resurfacing the oval. This will provide some inconveniences but once completed we hope will provide a quality surface for many years to come. We shall maintain the Merv Anderson pavilion as our home base so that we continue to have the feeling of "home".

Finally congratulations to all our award winners with Akashdeep Cheema being selected into the DVCA Barclay Shield team of the year which was reward for his consistent year.

Hopefully next season will see cricket back to what we have grown up with and will see more of our young players develop into future stars for our club.

Graham Clapton

President

Editor's Note – There were significant works undertaken in completing the synthetic coverings across the whole of the practice wicket apron. It is anticipated this will not only improve the amenity but it will increase player safety and prolong the life of practice balls. Brad Bowler is to be commended for his work in sourcing the materials.

A new and more user friendly bowling machine was purchased and was heavily utilised in the back end of the season by both senior and junior sections of the club. Additionally the club had a concrete pad laid under the shelter at the 'Cabbage Patch' which improved the spectating experience for players and supporters alike.

TREASURER'S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF THE BANYULE CRICKET CLUB INC,

The final result for the financial year ending 30 April 2022 was a surplus of \$26,301. This is a \$8,213 decrease on the previous financial year surplus of \$34,514.

We also invested \$18,400 into some capital items including a bowling machine, marquee, synthetic grass and a contribution to the concrete slab next to the A J Burkitt Oval. All of these will provide longer term benefits to our club.

Revenue

Membership revenue decreased by \$7,513. The decrease is largely due to:

- decrease in number of senior playing members
- decrease in junior members

There was no increase in the membership rates for FY21/22.

# Financial Members	2020/21	2021/22	Change
Junior	264	246	-18
Senior	61	35	-26
Vets	14	19	+5

There were a number of Vets and Junior members who were required to fill the 6 Senior teams during the year.

Bar, Canteen & Dinners recorded a \$5,372 gross margin. Sales were up on last year due to higher attendances with less Covid restrictions, with an operating margin of 16% which is consistent with last year.

Sponsorship was down slightly on last year by \$425 to \$17,685.

Social Revenue was down on last year by \$5,300 due to the timing of revenue from the Presentation night last year compared to this year. Also, last year Social revenue included the Toyota Grant of \$2484 which has been allocated to Grant income this year.

Grant income of \$6,717 provided some important income during the year. We were fortunate to receive 2 grants totalling \$2500 from the Department of Jobs, Precincts and Regions under the Sporting Clubs Grants program. Also, we received \$3500 from Cricket Australia as part of their Grass Roots funding program. Toyota also contributed \$717. A big shout out to Graham Clapton for facilitating this grant funding on behalf of the club during the year.

Expenses

Cricket expenditure was consistent with last year. We doubled our investment in junior coaching to \$4220, which was offset by lower senior cricket costs.

Buildings and Grounds costs were higher this year as there was no Covid support provided by council, as well as higher utility costs.

Administration costs were slightly higher this year, with the club providing valuable CPR training to a number of members. This was fully funded via the Sporting Club Grants program above.

A fantastic effort by everyone who participated this year. Thanks to all the captains who manage weekly collection of umpire fees and to the Junior and Senior Committee members who ensured the season ran successfully.

Finally, I would personally like to thank Thea Oliver for her fantastic bookkeeping support this year.

Looking forward to a successful cricket season in FY22/23.

Peter Cargin

Banyule Cricket Club 2021/22 Season

	20-21	21-22	Movement	
Revenue	\$81,169	\$79,822	-\$1,347	-2%
Membership	\$56,880	\$49,367	-\$7,513	-13%
Senior	\$20,175	\$12,446	-\$7,729	-38%
Junior	\$36,705	\$36,921	\$216	1%
Sponsorship	\$18,110	\$17,685	-\$426	-2%
Grants	\$0	\$6,717	\$6,717	
		. ,		
Social	\$9,633	\$4,333	-\$5,300	-55%
Bar & Canteen	\$4,035	\$5,473	\$1,438	36%
Sales	\$29,189	\$33,907	\$4,718	16%
Purchases	-\$25,154	-\$28,434	-\$3,280	13%
Merchandise & Equipment Sales	-\$7,907	-\$6,053	\$1,854	23%
Other Revenue	\$417	\$2,300	\$1,882	
Expenditure	-\$46,655	-\$53,521	-\$6,866	15%
Cricket	-\$31,270	-\$31,281	-\$11	0%
Buildings & Grounds	-\$11,764	-\$17,046	-\$5,282	45%
Administration + Misc	-\$3,621	-\$5,194	-\$1,573	43%
Surplus/(Deficit)	\$34,514	\$26,301	-\$8,213	-24%
CAPEX	\$0	-\$18,400	-\$18,400	

Banyule Cricket Club Profit to Bank Reconciliation at 30th April 2022

Balance	e as pei	r Bank	Account

1st May 2021 - opening \$54,629.31

Add: Surplus for Year 2021/22 \$26,300.92

less: Capital Items purchased

Merchandise on Hand -\$ 1,791.50
Capital expenditure -\$18,399.64

Expected Closing Bank Balance \$60,739.09

Closing Bank Balance

Bank of Queensland\$57,015.67Bendigo Bank\$3,723.42Closing Bank Balance\$60,739.09

Unreconciled \$ -

SENIOR TROPHY WINNERS 2021-2022 AND CONGRATULATIONS

	Batting	Bowling	Fielding Award
1 st XI	Arky Cheema	Arky Cheema	Lucas Willoughby
2 nd XI	Ryan Hartnett	Joshua Neilson	Darcy Mills
3 rd XI	James McIntyre	James McIntyre	Matt Lewis
4 th XI	Jake Lee	Peter Cargin	Graeme Renshaw
5 th XI	Gavin Cochrane	Lindsay Russell	Angus McCaffrey
6 th XI	Emilio Forsyth	Sterling Tuik	Beau McDonald

Don Richmond Perpetual Shield (Lifetime Service)	Philip Barnes
Banyule Club Champion Trophy	James McIntyre
Graeme Renshaw Best & Fairest Award	James McIntyre & Gavin Cochrane
Greg Anderson Outstanding Achievement Award	Meagan Pinner
Martin Veal Memorial Award (Junior Cricket)	Alistair Howell
DVCA Awards	Arky Cheema – Barclay Shield Team of the Year
Banyule Life Membership	-

Centuries	Michael Hannan (B Grade)	117 v Heidelberg
5 Wkts in an Innings	Michael Hannan (Barclay) Lindsay Russell (F3 Grade)	5/10 v North Eltham 5/18 v Diamond Creek

The following teams taking out premierships in competitions contested by the Senior Club;

- o Riverside (Barclay Shield)
- o Riverside (B Grade)
- o North Eltham Wanderers (C Grade)
- o Bundoora (F1 Grade)
- o Laurimar (F3 Grade)
- o Laurimar (G2 Grade)
- o Bundoora Park (North Metro T20 Comp)
- Bundoora Park (Spirit of Cricket Award)

Daniel Gilbert (Diamond Creek) on winning the **Ray Christesen Medal** for the best player in the **DVCA Barclay Shield competition** with 26 votes. Arky Cheema (7), Tom Elmer (4), Jeff Wilson, Michael Hannan and Justin Poyser (3) were the highest vote winners for Banyule.

Banyule Cricket Club also **welcomed** the following players to the senior club in **2021-22** for the first of what is hoped to be many successful and enjoyable years of association: - Arky Cheema, Tom Hall, Noah Ross, Beau McDonald, Leo Hobson-Nicholls, Seb Francis, Joshua Kapsalis, Thomas Kuriakose, Declan O'Connor, Jack Patena-McCarthy, Terry McCarthy, Abil Paul, Bailey Lawton, Tom Braddy, Andy Forsyth, Gavin Donehue, Dawson Conceicao, Liam Adair, William Brewster, Jake Kennedy, Harrison Stephens-Block, James Bland, Ryan Francis-D'Amour, and Gus Donoghue.

APPRECIATIONS

The Board of Management thanks the members and friends of the Club who gave special help during the season, including:

- Parents and others who lent their assistance during the season as team managers, scorers, umpires and taxi drivers for the Club's junior teams.
- o All junior coaches who helped organise and develop our future champions.
- Damien Braniff as Team Manager and Scorer of the 1st XI.
- o Tim Braddy and James McIntyre as the Club's junior co-ordinators.
- Steve Pinner as the Club's Woolworths Blast co-ordinator.
- Zach Brown, Connor Lennox, Hayley Pinner, Nick Bowler, Isaac Dugdale and Jake Kennedy for assisting in the running of the 12 week Woolworths Blast program.
- Alistair Howell for his coaching and encouragement of junior players.
- Brad Bowler for his work in having our facilities and playing areas marked and in excellent condition for match day. Additionally our thanks go to him for his work with equipment distribution and with local council
- o Scott Butler, Craig Hunniford and various bar staff who provided refreshments on game day.
- Greg Anderson and others who provided match day drinks and canteen facilities.
- Ralph Kernaghan for his photography work of the playing activities.
- o Philip Barnes and Graham Clapton for the Support Local Business initiative.
- The Committees of the DVCA, and the City of Banyule Parks and Gardens Department on a smooth year of administration.
- Kookaburra, Cutting Edge Cricket, All Things Safety Wear and 88.6FM for its generous support of the Diamond Valley Cricket Association.
- The Club's sponsors: Physio Life Australia, Kennedy Air and Plumbing Services, Bonola Automotive, Place Built Carpentry, Barr'd Wine & Tapas, Kutrize Hair Studio, The Greenery Home & Garden Nursery, KavAir, MSC Signage.

OFF THE FIELD

Our congratulations go to

- Mick Delaney & Lily Turnbull on their wedding
- o Mick Delaney & Lily on the birth of their Son, Patrick
- Scott Clapton & Samantha on their engagement
- Justin Poyser & Bec on their engagement
- Will Barnes & Erin on their engagement
- Sterling Tuik & Chris on their wedding
- Henry Tyler on his appointment as coach of the Philippines national cricket team

THE CLUB CHAMPIONS

The best performed player in the senior club is awarded the club champion trophy.

The award is decided on a points formula for runs, assisted wickets, unassisted wickets, catches, stumping's, run outs (direct and assisted). Points are awarded in home and away fixtures only.

	CLUB CHAMPION TROPHY - 2021-22 (FINALS NOT INCLUDED)											
1	J.G. McIntyre Snr 162 8 N.P. Murray 93 15 C. Lennox											
2	A.S. Cheema	150	9	P.A. Davis	91.75	16	J.R. Lee	74.75				
3	J.A. Neilson	130.75	10	J.C. Mahar	89	17	N.T. Ross	70.5				
4	G.D. Cochrane	123.75	11	O.A. McGillion	86.5	18	J. Crook	70.25				
5	D.D Mills	105.75	12	P.J. Cargin	86.25	19	T.C. Hall	69.75				
6	M.J. Hannan	97.75	13	J.N. Wilson	82.25	20	J.D. Poyser	68				
7	R.J. Hartnett	93.25	14	A.A. Simon	78.5	21	N.J. Aston	66.25				

THE GRAEME RENSHAW MEDAL

Graeme made his 1st XI debut in 1963-64 when the club was known as Rosanna Presbyterians. A fantastic wicket keeper who was awarded the position in the Banyule team of the first 50 years and a very dependable batsman at either end of the order, Graeme has coached the club and also been President aside from many years on the club's committee. He was awarded life membership in the 1970's and is still an active player and hugely respected member of the Banyule Cricket Club. The **Graeme Renshaw medal** is awarded on a 3-2-1 basis across all grades.

In a thrilling vote count where the top two placegetters swapped positions throughout the count, James McIntyre was able to poll a vote in the 2^{nd} last round to draw level with Gavin Cochrane on 21 votes. Neither played polled votes in the final round and joint winners was the outcome. Both players are first time winners of the award.

RESULT 2021/22

- 21 Cochrane, J McIntyre Snr (Tied)
- 16 Cheema
- 15 J Wilson
- 12 J Lee
- 11 D Mills, N Murray
- 10 Elmer, Hannan, Kuriakose
- 9 Lennox, McDonald, J Neilson, B Johnson
- 8 Brown, Russell, Mahar, Cargin, N Heterington, M Johnson, Kapsalis
- 7 Perugini, Crook, Hartnett, McGillion, P Davis, J Poyser, Sier, Delaney
- 6 J McIntyre Jnr, Hall, Rodda, Oliver, Hobson-Nicholls, Tuik, D Kennedy, W Barnes
- 5 Jadhav, J Kennedy, Kernaghan, S Place, N Aston, Schoen, D Murray, Patena-McCarthy
- 4 L Poyser, AA Simon, Renshaw, Pinner, B Wilson, S Adair, Morel, P Barnes, McCaffrey, Dugdale, E Forsyth
- 3 G Butterworth, A Forsyth, D Butterworth, J Veal, N Bowler, M Jones, D O'Connor, Bennett, R Jones, Stapleton
- 2 AG Simon, Ataryniw, Ross, G Place, Paul, Ebbage, Lewis, F Davis, Batchelder, McMurray, Heaney,
- 1 B O'Connor, Everson, Willoughby, L Adair, B Bowler

COACH'S REPORT

Firstly, I would like to thank the committee and players for the opportunity to coach the Banyule Cricket Club. Once again, we had a delay to the start to the year due to COVID 19, this resulted in a short 3-week preseason.

The club lost several players from the top two grades from the previous year who either retired or moved to other clubs. This gave the opportunity to our younger player to step up into Barclay shield and other grades and cement their positions.

The coaching group focused on developing players for the future and put a lot of time into our 14- to 20-yearold players. The work this group received from the assistant coaches was outstanding and will help these players play high levels of cricket soon.

Nick Murray led our Barclay team as a first-year captain and grew into the role as the year went on. The experience Nick gained will help him develop into a great Banyule leader. Our Barclay team missed finals but introduced several players to the level required for Barclay cricket and this will help the players and club soon.

Ryan Batchelder again captained the second eleven and the team had a successful year making the preliminary final. With regular changes to our Barclay team, it was Ryan and the lower grades teams that were regularly changing players. The time Ryan and his leadership group put into his young side will be seen in the future.

James 'Daffy' McIntyre captained our third 11. From the start of the year this was our main development team for our top age juniors. This team played most weeks against other clubs second grade side and performed very well. The win loss record will not show the true development of our junior players but internally the coaching group could see the improvement in our players.

Michael Delaney captained our 4th eleven who had a great year making the preliminary final. Like our 3rd grade team this side was set out to be a development side with a sprinkle of older player for stability. Alistair Howell and Jamie Marks captained our 5th and 6th sides. The time and effort Alistair and Jamie spent with our youngest senior player teaching them the correct way to play cricket, and to play and love the game will ensure will have a steady stream for players coming through to high grades.

I need to thank Brett Oliver our chairman of selectors. This is a thankless job that Brett performed extremely well. Brett always had an eye on the future of the club and pushed for younger players to be given chances to play higher levels.

My assistant coaches, Darren Butterworth, Paul Davis, and Ralph Kernaghan also need to be acknowledged. The time you all gave to our club was outstanding. The group and I are very lucky to have your time and knowledge every week. Our players improved with your fantastic input over the season.

To the playing group, keep pushing yourself to play the highest level you can. Don't be happy just playing, strive to be the best you can. Remember you don't need a title to be a leader. How you act and conduct yourself on and off the field makes you leaders. Continue to set the right example for yourself and the next generation to follow

Good luck and thanks for the year

Darren Pybus Senior Club Coach

BOARD OF MANAGEMENT - PLAYING REPORTS

With Covid19 restrictions remaining in place, the 2021-22 was to follow a similar theme to 2020-21. The playing group under new coach Darren Pybus were able to meet via such modern communication methods as Zoom and Microsoft Teams. Training was again a logistical challenge even allowing for the fact that the season was again subject to a later start than the traditional first weekend in October. Some limited indoor sessions were held for the likely Shield group but most training endeavours were, like the preceding year where players gathered in small groups and utilised local facilities. The Banyule 'fitness challenge' again saw the playing group break in to four teams and competing for points along a number of cricket and fitness related activities. This initiative that included drafts and incentives again generated much enthusiasm in the lead up to the commencement of the season.

Fixtures for 2021-22 across all grades again comprised one day games only (45 overs for Barclay Shield, 40 overs for B-E grades and 35 overs for F Grade and below). A start to the season in mid-November would appear to have taken care of the traditional early season rain interrupted fixtures yet round 1 was washed out for all senior grades. As things transpired only one scheduled weekend was cancelled and the DVCA are again to be commended for the flexibility they adopted in ensuring that nearly all games were played. The short form games are a laudable and practical attempt by the DVCA to ensure consistency and navigate Covid-19 complications but are not best suited to a club with a large junior component.

With the preponderance of limited over games it could be argued that this is to the detriment of some players overall participation and tally of runs and wickets. Junior cricket saw 20/20 games only and this did not necessarily provide enough 'cricket' for the players. With the numbers of games and players comes challenges around organising training and match planning and whilst our numbers may be viewed with envy by other DVCA clubs, they no doubt create challenges for those entrusted with such responsibilities. Ultimately however we all should have felt fulfilled to have had six senior grades play roughly 90 games over the course of the season.

Fielding six senior grades and requiring selection every week asked a lot of the respective captains and the match committee. Player availability was again variable and is an area that increasingly is where all clubs find themselves challenged as the concept of a 12 game a year player is a rarity (particularly in the lower grades). At times we were resigned to changing sides at the last minute as Covid-19 unavailability's impacted. An excellently organised junior program with willing youngsters and a wide network of past and part time players meant we always fielded full sides and this did the match committee, and the captain's enormous credit.

There were times where difficult decisions were arrived at and it is hoped that those impacted appreciated the communication and the thought processes behind any such decisions in what is always a difficult area to manage. Other challenges to be met included the fact that many XI's often were playing rivals higher XI's in their respective grades (C Grade and below). Particular mention must go to James McIntyre who ran a wonderfully informative colour coded spread sheet which assisted with both availability updates and the tracking of the profile of our XI's throughout the season.

A second year for the **1**st **XI** in Barclay Shield under a new coach (Darren Pybus) and new captain (Nick Murray) brought with it a great many unknowns and a great many challenges. From the 3rd placed 2020-21 Barclay Shield side we lost 7 players and many of these were influential players within the side. These included former Coach Henry Tyler (Northcote & Philippines), Brent O'Connor (Retired), and Alex Lewis (Preston). In addition we also lost 3 younger players in Jack Arandt (Fitzroy), Spencer Veal (Riverside), and Callum Asbury (South Gippsland). All three were under 21 and had been identified as likely long term 1st XI players. Recruiting was undertaken and we added a batting all-rounder in Arky Cheema (Ivanhoe), a bowling all-rounder in Tom Hall (Mernda), and a bowler in Noah Ross (West Ivanhoe) who all made their 1stXI debuts in Round 1.

The season commenced in a forthright fashion with a stunning victory over reigning premiers North Eltham. A good lower order partnership (Willoughby & J Poyser) saw a defendable score reached, and from here an incisive bowling burst up front (Hannan) left North Eltham with too much to do at the end. What followed were indifferent successive defeats with no attributable theme against Rosanna and Macleod. From a position of relative comfort we then nearly saw Lower Eltham pinch a game, and only the safe hands of Wilson in the outfield saw a one run victory in the last over panic. The game leading in to the mid-season break therefore became an important one. What however followed was a powerful batting display by a well performed Heidelberg which saw the team back to 2-3 at the break.

The other side of the mid-season break saw a rousing and aggressive victory against perennial DVCA power side Riverside led by excellent individual performances from J Poyser and Cheema. The following three games however saw disappointing losses on the back of some indifferent batting, and after an angst filled day at Rosanna, an urgent re-set was required, particularly with finals out of reach and relegation a potential

hazard. Wholesale changes that included debuts for Lennox and Simon and a return to 1stXI cricket for Hartnett and Elmer added a bit of enthusiasm. A timely return to batting form for Murray saw a strong team orientated display upset Macleod. Another uplifting victory followed when the team bowled and fielded brilliantly after Lower Eltham started well in chasing a smallish total.

From here the season ebbed away and we were to lose twice, before drawing our final game. We ultimately finished 8th (of 10) at the end of the home and away season with five victories. Of the eight losses it was disappointing to note that only two of them were reasonably close encounters. Replacing the most impactful all-rounder in DVCA in Brent O'Connor (429 Runs & 26 Wkts in 2020-21), and an injured Michael Hannan after Round 7, was always going to be a challenge that tested the depth of the club. The results indicated that this challenge was not always met, even allowing for some wins against well performed sides.

The batting numbers were well down on 2020-21 and with only 14 individual scores over 30 it was a bridge the bowlers were not always able to defend. Only Arky Cheema, who finished the year with consecutive half centuries, Jeff Wilson (sensible in the mid order) and Nick Murray were able to reach 200 runs for the season. Of the others, Luke Poyser after a slow start shaped well until his season ended with injury. Similarly Joel Crook started slowly and found some semblance of form until his season also ended in late January. Justin Poyser who along with Nick Murray played the best two innings of the season. Both however would have been concerned with the number of times that they missed out. Bailey Neilson and Darcy Mills didn't quite progress as hoped but equally it is recognised that the one day format presents plenty of challenges for those relatively inexperienced at the level and required to keep the game moving.

The bowling was reasonably well performed when factoring in the losses at the outset and during the season. The highlight was undoubtedly the performance of left handed wrist spinner Arky Cheema who took 24 wickets and was a consistent wicket taker throughout. Another highlight was the niggardly economy of Tom Elmer who hadn't featured at the level for a number of seasons. Jeremy Mahar offered a point of difference with his pace and aggression and Michael Hannan (prior to injury), Nick Murray and Jeff Wilson bowled with good economy throughout.

Of the younger players Noah Ross and Ayush Simon had some encouraging games and both have scope for improvement. Congratulations should also go out to Arky Cheema, Tom Hall, Noah Ross, Daryl Kennedy, Ayush Simon, Connor Lennox, and Josh Neilson who all made their 1st XI debuts for the club during the season. It was the most players that had been introduced in a single year since 1988-89.

The **2nd XI** under the leadership of Ryan Batchelder (and Ollie McGillion) was expected to challenge strongly after an impressive first season in B Grade in 2020-21 which included a 3rd placed finish. The challenge as always for a club 2nd XI is to gain results at the same time having the depth of talent ready to compete at 1st XI level. It is a compliment to Ryan that four players were able to earn promotion on the back of opportunity and performance at this level.

The side got off to an excellent start winning their first four games based on a formula of strangling sides bowling first, and then running down these totals with relative ease. Two losses either side of the mid-season break against other well performed sides in Heidelberg and Riverside was merely a stutter as they then proceeded to win their next three games. Winning and losing games decided by one run followed, and finals were virtually assured by Round 12 as a significant gap opened between the top four sides and the rest. Winning two of the final games saw a 3rd placed finish and a home final against Heidelberg. A convincing win chasing a modest total meant a clash away at Rosanna the following day for a Grand Final berth. What transpired was a strange and frenetic batting display (88) and although Rosanna were to lose 7 wickets in pursuit, the bowlers were left with too much to do, and the season was ended at the same point as it had done in 2020-21 with a 3rd place finish.

The batting acquitted itself well throughout. Ryan Hartnett (complementing his wicket keeping) and Ayush Simon led the way at the top of the innings and both scored over 250 runs. Michael Hannan playing as a bat due to a side injury made his first 100 amongst other robust contributions and Tom Hall, late in the year and Darcy Mills, earlier were well performed. Daryl Kennedy batted sensibly in support of others, and Ryan Batchelder scoring briskly, were both also important along the way.

The bowling effort was again highlighted by Josh Neilson who exceeded his previous years tally by one wicket (29). His ability to consistently take wickets when called upon was demonstrated by a strike rate of a wicket roughly every 22 balls. Ollie McGillion took 18 wickets and like Tom Elmer was very economical and gave the side excellent control. Connor Lennox was very influential, particularly early in the season, opening the bowling with his off breaks and Noah Ross finished the year as a consistent wicket taker and was desperately unlucky to miss out on playing in the finals.

Whilst disappointed at not reaching the Grand Final this side had a total of 27 players play including a number for the first time at the level. Importantly this XI gained further exposure to an intense level of cricket which will be of long term benefit to the club.

The **3**rd **XI** under new captain James McIntyre were again competing in C Grade and often against other teams 2nd XI's. That they were highly competitive throughout was a very creditable scenario. In the early part of the season the side was able to threaten ultimate finals sides without quite prevailing. Three wins out of four games either side of the mid-season break was a promising sign. Unfortunately winning only one of the last six games cruelled any finals ambitions. Again a large contingent of players moved through this XI and among some older heads were a number of promising younger players from the junior section. A feature of James's leadership was his eagerness to involve the younger players in planning and preparing for games. The upshot was a side that was enthusiastic and willing to compete, and these youngsters were able to learn and think beyond their own games.

Runs were a currency that was slightly down from where it needed to be and there was only one half century scored during the season. Experienced pair James McIntyre (232) and Steve Pinner (196) were the only players to exceed 150 runs. Of the younger players, Joel Perugini, Zach Brown, Jake Lee, and James Heaney have abundant ability and were able to have an innings at the level that demonstrated that. Of the other more regular players, Paul Davis and Graham Bennett contributed well floating throughout the order.

With the ball James McIntyre had a tremendous season. Bowling later in the innings he was a regular and economic wicket taker with 20 wickets. Jaxon McIntyre bowling leg spin also showed ability at the level and had a taste of 2nd XI cricket along the journey. The more experienced Paul Davis and Philip Barnes bowled economically throughout and with their collective experience assisted enormously in the development of the younger fast bowlers. Of these youngsters Liam Sier, Nick Bowler Flynn Davis and Brodie Johnson all were able to break in to a finals bound B Grade Side during the year and only injury to Zach Brown prevented him developing as a bowler along with the others previously mentioned.

The **4th XI** under Michael Delaney and Brett Oliver played in F1 and were again a well performed XI. The 'Peoples XI' started the year winning five of its first six games and there appeared a real gap in quality of opponents which may have flattered the side slightly. After the mid-season break the side was to win as many as they lost and it was a final round win that ensured a top four finish and a clash with F1 heavyweight Lalor. In a quirk of ill fate for Lalor, they were unable to host the game due to a fire damaged pavilion. On winning the toss they further compounded their woes by asking Banyule to bat and Lee & M Johnson did exactly that, sending the side on the path to a winning score. Unfortunately a listless performance the following day in the Preliminary final against Lower Plenty saw the side fall at the same hurdle and the same opponent as had happened in 2020-21.

The batting was generally able to score runs in a positive manner and the highlight was the development of Jake Lee who scored two half centuries in his 228 runs in what was his first year at the level. Dale Rodda, Michael Johnson and Sam Place all exceeded 150 runs in abbreviated appearances, and Michael Delaney exceeded 200 runs in his typically robust manner. With the ball veteran Peter Cargin with late swing was outstanding taking 21 wickets. Anish Jadhav and Daniel Murray both adjusted well to the step up in grades for them and exceeded 10 wickets, as did Brett Oliver who was the most economical. Brodie Johnson exhibited enormous potential and enjoyed exposure in both B & C Grades. One of the season's highlights was the outstanding wicket keeping of Graeme Renshaw. He was consistent throughout and made a number of fantastic catches including four in a game against Lower Plenty early in the season.

The **5**th **XI** under the leadership of Alistair Howell played in F3 grade after a fixture amendment saw them promoted at the start of the season. After starting the year in a promising manner with two wins, the side experienced a severe downturn. Only one other win followed, and eight successive losses closed out what results and confidence wise was a disappointing year. What became apparent was that 40 players filtering through the side offered little by way of continuity and made planning difficult. Upon reflection it also became apparent that some of the younger players found the level of cricket a challenge particularly as most of the opponents were 3rd & 4th XI's of their respective clubs.

Gavin Cochrane was an absolute stand out with 345 runs to complement his excellent wicket keeping. Nick Aston made some useful all round contributions and played a game in F1. Lindsay Russell was the leading bowler and his off breaks reaped 14 wickets. Ben Wilson and Leo Hobson-Nicholls both showed undoubted skill and promise with the ball and Josh Kapsalis and Thomas Kuriakose can also expect to develop their batting as they get more experience of senior cricket.

The 6th XI played in G2 grade and were led by new skipper Jamie Marks. The side was a mix of younger juniors (U14's) and cricketers and parents that are relatively new to cricket. This clearly contributed to results on the field that indicated a struggle. Like our 5th XI this side also found themselves matched up against sides that were a lot more experienced and stronger in all departments. The side was unable to make enough runs

to set competitive totals or stay in games and only Emilio Forsyth exceeded 100 runs for the season. Only Sterling Tuik who developed his slow bowling, and promising junior Nathanael Hetherington took more than 5 wickets.

An absolute highlight was the one win the side had against Grand Final side Montmorency. The lowlight was that it was the only game the first year skipper missed during the season! Other highlights included the amount of juniors that had their first taste of senior cricket.

A feature of having six senior XI's is the ability to transition enthusiastic juniors to senior cricket for the first time. Our junior players and participation rates as mentioned previously, are looked upon with envy by others. Not only are our numbers good but the abilities of some of these players stands out. We should be proudly aiming for these players to maintain their enthusiasm and to progress quickly through the grades as their talent develops further. Whilst success throughout the grades by way of wins did not always come during 2021-22, as evidenced by only two of our six sides making finals, we still have much to look forward to. A focus on retention and well targeted recruitment is a way in which we can ensure future success.

Brett Oliver On behalf of Match Committee

DVCA VETERANS REPORT

After winning last season's A Grade Premiership we had the following players retire from Vets; Steve Pinner, Daryl Kennedy, James McIntyre, Michael Asbury, Michael Johnson, David Bourke and Fraser Neilson. Andrew Parry was unfortunately injured and was out for the season. That's a loss of 8 players. Luckily, we had Glenn Butterworth, Paul McMurray, Pete Cargin, Simon Adair, Vishal Jassi and Marty Phillips still available.

The loss of 8 players meant that we could only field 2 teams this season in A and B Grade respectively and that Geoff Place, Michael Harte, Steve Taylor, Jason Baldwin, Andy Hetherington, Matt Lewis, Greg Barnes and David Veal had to step up to fill that void left in A Grade.

I cannot thank the boys in A Grade enough for this season. I was hoping that we wouldn't get our pants pulled down in any games, but our season went like this; we shared the points with Rosebank due to a soggy ground, we beat Rosanna, we then had a last ball win against Hurstbridge when we had only 10 players, we had an inexplicable loss to Riverside, we beat the talented Heidelberg as well as the highly fancied Montmorency before dropping the last game to top of the table, Laurimar. These results were enough for us to end up second on the ladder by percentage.

We were now in the Grand Final against Laurimar on their home ground. Marty Phillips was ruled out due to Covid and we had the bare 11 players. We won the toss and batted making 131 which was about 20 runs shy of what we wanted. We bowled well and at 5 for 111, Laurimar were looking vulnerable. They made to last 20 odd runs with a few overs to spare. We put up a fantastic fight. The opposition and umpires alike were very complimentary of how we played the game, hard and fair but enjoying every moment.

The B Grade boys were capably led by Brad Bowler and Adrian Brown. We had Jason Manolakakis return after a couple of seasons off. The B Veterans finished the season with two wins and five narrow losses. Their best game was when they defeated Laurimar in the final game, Laurimar would go on to play off in the B Grade Grand Final, the following week. The other boys who played in the B's this season were Marlon Schoen, Stirling Tuik, Michael Letcher, Craig Holst, Brett Oliver, Jon Vignale, John Kennan, Darren Attard, Gavin Cochrane, Rob Jones, Brian Smith, and Bill Sier.

In all we had 14 players represent us in A Grade and 15 players in B Grade. I would like to thank all of you guys for making the season so enjoyable. Hopefully we get a few more back next season and field a third team.

Geoff 'Jed' Place
Vets Co-ordinator

Mid-Year Cricket Association (MYCA) REPORT - 2021

An initiative that first kicked off in 2019 (but was abandoned in 2020 due to Covid-19) was the creation of a winter cricket side affectionately named the "Polar Bears".

In 2021 this project expanded to incorporate an U14 Sunday side in addition to the senior side that played on Saturday's in the North Division (Bhatia Shield). Both sides were able to use Warawee Park in Bundoora for home games.

Seniors – Played 8, Won 3, Lost 5 (25 Players Used) Juniors – Played 6, Won 4, Lost 2 (14 Players Used)

These sides were organised by Alistair Howell whose tireless commitment to all aspects of the club is much appreciated.

Editor

BANYULE 1ST XI (Barclay Shield) - Played 14, Won 5, Drawn 1 Lost 8 (8th)

- R1 Diamond Creek drew Banyule (No Play)
- R2 Banyule 7/140 (JD Poyser 33, LA Willoughby 31*, BL Neilson 27) defeated North Eltham 132 (MJ Hannan 5/10, AS Cheema 3/40)
- R3 Rosanna 8/140 (NT Ross 3/12) defeated Banyule 114
- R4 Banyule 8/188 (JN Wilson 54, LJ Poyser 39, LA Willoughby 28*) lost to Macleod 5/190 (AS Cheema 2/37)
- R5 Banyule 8/159 (LJ Poyser 37, JN Wilson 27) defeated Lower Eltham 158 (TC Hall 2/11, JC Mahar 2/23, NP Murray 2/23)
- R6 Heidelberg 5/213 defeated Banyule 176 (AS Cheema 45, J Crook 44)
- R7 Banyule 7/209 (JD Poyser 76, J Crook 42)) defeated Riverside 138 (AS Cheema 4/13, NT Ross 3/38, TC Hall 2/12)
- R8 Banyule 108 J Crook 28, NP Murray 26) lost to Epping 3/111 (MJ Hannan 2/39)
- R9 North Eltham 151 (TD Elmer 3/23, JC Mahar 2/6, LA Willoughby 2/22) defeated Banyule 9/135 (DA Kennedy 30, J Crook 30)
- R10 Rosanna 8/171 (TD Elmer 3/25, AS Cheema 2/29) defeated Banyule 146 (JN Wilson 30)
- R11 Banyule 6/170 (NP Murray 75*) defeated Macleod 107 (JC Mahar3/26, AS Cheema 2/15)
- R12 Banyule 122 (DD Mills 28 defeated Lower Eltham 112 (AS Cheema 3/23, JC Mahar 3/32, NP Murray 2/10)
- R13 Heidelberg 6/169 (AS Cheema 2/23, JC Mahar 2/31) defeated Banyule 120 (RJ Hartnett 27, AA Simon 26)
- R14 Banyule 153 (AS Cheema 50, JN Wilson 41) lost to Diamond Creek 1/157
- R15 Banyule 9(d)167 (AS Cheema 56*, GD Bennett 47) drew Research EC 4/136 (NP Murray 2/47)

1 ST XI (2021/22)			E	BATTING						BOWL	ING		
NAME (20 Played)	MT	INN	NO	RUNS	HS	AVE	СТ	ΟV	MD	RUNS	WK	AVE	ВВ
BENNETT, Graham D	2	2	0	47	17	23.50	1/0	-					
CHHEMA, Akashdeep S	15	14	1	256	56*	19.69	4	104	15	351	24	14.63	4/13
CROOK, Joel	10	9	0	181	44	20.11	9/0	-					
ELMER, Thomas D	6	5	3	13	8*	6.50	1	44.5	12	134	9	14.89	3/32
HALL, Thomas C	8	6	4	26	10*	13.00	2	30.4	4	98	5	19.60	2/11
HANNAN, Michael J	6	5	2	34	22*	11.33	2	41.5	5	135	8	16.88	5/10
HARTNETT, Ryan J	3	3	0	56	27	18.67	1/0	-					
KENNEDY, Daryl A	6	6	0	81	30	13.50	0	1					
LENNOX, Connor	2	1	1	6	6*	ı	0	7	0	44	1	44.00	1/33
MAHAR, Jeremy C	11	9	2	52	15	7.43	4	67	11	249	13	19.15	3/26
MILLS, Darcy D	10	9	0	95	28	10.56	4	11	0	57	1	57.00	1/26
MURRAY, Nick P	14	13	1	200	75*	16.67	4	107.3	15	357	9	39.67	2/10
NEILSON, Bailey L	12	12	0	115	27	9.58	3	3	0	17	0	ı	
NEILSON, Joshua A	1	1	1	1	1*	ı	0	6	0	38	0	ı	
POYSER, Justin D	11	10	0	160	76	16.00	5	1					
POYSER, Luke J	9	8	0	134	39	16.75	3	-					
ROSS, Noah T	9	4	2	19	10	9.50	1	43.5	4	181	8	22.63	3/12
SIMON, Ayush A	3	3	0	35	26	11.67	0	-					
WILLOUGHBY, Lucas A	14	13	4	140	31*	15.56	7	13	1	53	3	17.67	2/22
WILSON, Jeff N	13	12	0	229	54	19.08	5	81.4	11	303	4	75.75	1/18

BANYULE 2nd XI (B Grade) - Played 16, Won 11, Lost 5 (3rd)

- R1 Banyule drew Diamond Creek (No Play)
- R2 Montmorency 127 (C Lennox 3/32, JA Neilson 2/16, JC Mahar 2/22) lost to Banyule 5/131 (DD Mills38, RC Batchelder 32*)
- R3 Rosanna 124 (JC Mahar 3/19, C Lennox 2/19) lost to Banyule 5/125 (AA Simon 37*, DD Mills 31)
- R4 Lalor Stars 8/99 (TD Elmer 3/21, OA McGillion 2/7) lost to Banyule 4/101 (DA Kennedy 36*, RJ Hartnett 26)
- R5 Bundoora United 132 (C Lennox 3/17, DD Mills 2/9, FA Davis 2/27) lost to Banyule 7/133 (C Lennox 43*, OA McGillion 41*)
- R6 Banyule 6/138 (DD Mills 55*) lost to Heidelberg 6/139 (JA Neilson 2/31)
- R7 Riverside 8/160 (JG McIntyre Jnr 3/16, PA Davis 2/17) defeated Banyule 9/107 (AA Simon 56*)
- R8 Epping 9/149 (JA Neilson 4/34) lost to Banyule 4/150 (RJ Hartnett 67, DD Mills 43)
- R9 Banyule 5/178 (RJ Hartnett 65, AA Simon 46) defeated Montmorency 141 (OA McGillion 4/29, JA Neilson 3/29)
- R10 Rosanna 99 (JA Neilson 6/22, NT Ross 2/17, OA McGillion 2/23) lost to Banyule 5/101 (RJ Hartnett 26)
- R11 Banyule 5/207 (TC Hall 64, RC Batchelder 30, JD Poyser 27*, AA Simon 27) lost to Lalor Stars 7/208 (NT Ross 2/35, OA McGillion 2/42)
- R12 Banyule 105 (MJ Hannan 28) defeated Bundoora United 104 (NJ Bowler 3/22, JA Neilson 2/20, IP Dugdale 2/24)
- R13 Banyule 7/199 (MJ Hannan 117, TC Hall 53) defeated Heidelberg 6/190 (NT Ross 2/53)
- R14 Diamond Creek 9/144 (NT Ross 3/38) defeated Banyule 127 (JD Poyser 43, DA Kennedy 34)
- R15 Research EC 8/149 (NJ Bowler 2/16, JA Neilson 2/33) lost to Banyule 7/150 (WG Barnes 33, MJ Hannan 33)
- SF Heidelberg 9/122 (TD Elmer 2/14, TC Hall 2/15) lost to Banyule 4/124 (MJ Hannan 33*, DA Kennedy 31)
- PF Banyule 88 lost to Rosanna 7/90 (OA McGillion 3/22, TD Elmer 2/16)

2 nd XI (2021/22)			E	BATTING						BOWL	ING		
NAME (28 Played)	MT	INN	NO	RUNS	HS	AVE	СТ	ov	MD	RUNS	WK	AVE	ВВ
BARNES, William G	6	6	1	52	33	10.40	3/0	-					
BATCHELDER, Ryan C	14	11	4	130	32*	18.57	7	-					
BENNETT, Graham D	3	1	1	1	1*	-	7/0	-					
BOWLER, Jackson D	7	6	1	52	22	10.40	0	-					
BOWLER, Nicholas J	5	2	0	0	0	0.00	1	20.5	3	67	5	13.40	3/22
BROWN, Zach J	2	1	0	16	16	16.00	0	-					
DAVIS, Flynn A	8	1	1	8	8*	-	1	48.4	5	220	6	36.67	2/27
DAVIS, Paul A	2	2	1	11	8*	11.00	2	12	1	60	2	30.00	2/17
DUGDALE, Isaac P	3	1	0	0	0	0.00	1	14	0	49	3	16.33	2/24
ELMER, Thomas D	6	1	1	9	9*	-	0	39.5	9	103	8	12.88	3/21
HALL, Thomas C	6	6	0	143	64	23.83	2	19	3	64	4	16.00	2/15
HANNAN, Michael J	8	8	2	236	117	39.33	3	-					
HARTNETT, Ryan J	11	10	1	253	67	28.11	8/0	-					
JOHNSON, Brodie M	1	1	1	1	1*	-	0	8	1	27	1	27.00	1/27
KENNEDY, Daryl A	10	9	3	143	36*	23.83	3	-					
LENNOX, Connor	15	8	4	78	43*	19.50	4	89	14	261	15	17.40	3/17
MAHAR, Jeremy C	3	-					0	20	4	56	5	11.20	3/19
McGILLION, Oliver A	16	10	2	104	41*	13.00	7	101.1	23	313	18	17.39	4/29
McINTYRE, James G	3	3	0	40	19	13.33	3	14	2	38	2	19.00	1/15
McINTYRE, Jaxon G	5	1	0	0	0	0.00	1	27	3	105	5	21.00	3/16
MILLS, Darcy D	7	7	1	182	55*	30.33	4	17.5	2	80	3	26.67	2/9
NEILSON, Bailey L	2	2	0	42	24	21.00	2	13	3	31	1	31.00	1/20
NEILSON, Joshua A	15	8	2	30	13	5.00	10	111	7	443	29	15.28	6/22
PINNER, Steve M	3	2	0	3	3	1.50	0	-					
POYSER, Justin D	4	3	1	72	43	36.00	0	-					
ROSS, Noah T	6	1	0	3	3	3.00	0	44	4	187	11	17.00	3/38
SIER, Liam C	2	1	0	0	0	0.00	1	10	0	40	0		
SIMON, Ayush A	14	13	2	283	56*	25.73	3	-					

BANYULE 3rd XI (C Grade) - Played 13, Won 4, Lost 9 (8th)

- R1 Lower Eltham drew Banyule (No Play)
- R2 Bundoora 144 (JG McIntyre Snr 3\4, PJ Barnes 2/13, PA Davis 2/25, LC Sier 2/27) defeated Banyule 8/132 (GD Bennett 35)
- R3 Lower Plenty 8/209 (JG McIntyre Jnr 4/47, PJ Barnes 2/45) defeated Banyule 9/171 (JG McIntyre Snr 47, GD Bennett 43)
- R4 Mernda 124 (JG McIntyre Jnr 3/33, JG McIntyre Snr 2/11, LC Sier 2/16) defeated Banyule 109 (JG McIntyre Snr 38, SM Pinner 31)
- R5 Laurimar 126 (PA Davis 3/22, JG McIntyre Snr 3/22, PJ Barnes 2/22, LC Sier 2/26) lost to Banyule 6/128
- R6 Old Paradians 9/112 (BM Johnson 2/21) lost to Banyule 2/118 (SM Pinner 61*, MC Lewis 31)
- R7 North Eltham 2/229 defeated Banyule 8/151 (MC Lewis 42, GD Cochrane 38)
- R8 Macleod 5/138 (JG McIntyre Snr 2/33) lost to Banyule 4/140 (J Perugini 37, A Samad 29, JG McIntyre Snr 28*)
- R9 Banyule 58 lost to Bundoora 2/60
- R10 Banyule 8/138 (JG McIntyre Snr 43, J Perugini 29) lost to Lower Plenty 6/141 (JG McIntyre Snr 2/22)
- R11 Mernda 7/144 (JG McIntyre Snr 2/21, BA Oliver 2/23) defeated Banyule 8/109 (ZJ Brown 45)
- R12 Banyule 125 (WG Barnes 42) lost to Laurimar 5/130 (JG McIntyre Snr 2/22)
- R13 Banyule 173 (PA Davis 39, SM Pinner 26) defeated Old Paradians 143 (JG McIntyre Snr 3/18, JI Heaney 2/22, FA Davis 2/26)
- R14 Banyule 7/119 (JR Lee 29*, ZJ Brown 27) lost to Lower Eltham 3/120
- R15 Riverside drew Banyule (No Play)

3 rd XI (2021-22)			E	BATTING						BOV	VLING		
NAME (36 Played)	MT	INN	NO	RUNS	HS	AVE	СТ	ov	MD	RUNS	WK	AVE	ВВ
ADAIR, Simon G	1	1	0	1	1	1.00	0	1	0	5	0	-	
ALEXSANDROV, Ja K	1	-					0	-					
ATARYNIW, Cameron M	5	2	2	8	5*	-	0	21	3	96	1	96.00	1/29
BARNES, Philip J	6	3	1	6	4*	3.00	1	46	7	122	9	13.56	2/13
BARNES, William G	2	2	0	65	42	32.50	1	0.1	0	0	1	0.00	1/0
BENNETT, Graham D	6	5	0	86	43	17.20	5/2	-					
BOWLER, Jackson D	6	5	0	65	16	13.00	0	2	0	13	0	-	
BOWLER, Nicholas J	7	6	3	44	16	14.67	2	14	3	48	2	24.00	1/15
BROWN, Zac J	9	9	0	113	45	12.56	1	12	1	47	0	-	
COCHRANE, Gavin D	2	2	0	46	38	23.00	0/0	-					
DAVIS, Flynn A	7	4	3	21	14*	21.00	2	34	1	126	5	25.20	2/26
DAVIS, Paul A	13	10	2	128	39	16.00	6	61.3	13	196	10	19.60	3/22
DUGDALE, Isaac P	3	1	0	4	4	4.00	0	19	1	74	1	74.00	1/23
HEANEY, James I	8	6	1	33	16*	6.60	1	21	2	69	4	17.25	2/22
HOBSON-NICHOLLS, LR	1	-					0	-					
HOPE, Toby E	3	2	0	0	0	0.00	0	-					
JOHNSON, Brodie M	4	2	2	10	10*	-	1	23	6	83	4	20.75	2/21
JOHNSON, Michael W	3	2	1	9	6*	9.00	0	12	2	38	1	38.00	1/6
JONES, Marcus J	1	1	0	1	1	1.00	0	8	0	39	0	-	
LEE, Jake R	1	1	1	29	29*	-	0	3.3	1	13	1	13.00	1/13
LEWIS, Matthew C	12	11	0	126	42	11.45	8/0	-					
MARKS, Jamie A	1	1	0	0	0	0.00	0	-					
McDONALD, Beau W	4	2	0	12	12	6.00	2	17	1	69	4	17.25	3/24
McINTYRE, James G	11	10	1	232	47	25.78	4	57	6	175	20	8.75	3\4
McINTYRE, Jaxon G	3	2	1	18	17*	18.00	2	16	1	80	7	11.43	4/47
McMURRAY, Paul L	1	1	0	13	13	13.00	0	8	3	19	1	19.00	1/19
MURRAY, Daniel R	3	1	1	19	19*	-	0	13	0	67	0	-	
OLIVER, Brett A	1	1	1	2	2*	1	0	6	0	23	2	11.50	2/23
PERUGINI, Joel	14	11	0	123	37	11.18	6	16.4	2	78	1	78.00	1/8
PINNER, Steve M	10	9	1	196	61*	24.50	3	-					
RODDA, Dale L	2	1	0	14	14	14.00	0	-					
SAMAD, Adam	2	1	0	29	29	29.00	0						
SIER, Liam C	7	4	2	11	9*	5.50	2	39.3	5	149	6	24.83	2/16
STAPLETON, Adrian J	1	1	0	0	0	0.00	0	-					
VEAL, David R	1	1	0	0	0	0.00	0	3	0	14	0	-	
VEAL, Jack W	3	2	0	16	10	8.00	2	20	4	102	1	102.00	1/11

BANYULE 4th XI (F1 Grade) - Played 15, Won 9, Lost 6 (3rd)

- R1 Banvule drew Rosanna (No Plav)
- R2 Lalor Stars 7/104 (PJ Cargin 2/11, A Jadhav 2/30) lost to Banyule 4/105 (MC Lewis 27)
- R3 Banyule 8/146 (BW McDonald 50*) lost to Bundoora 2/147 (MW Johnson 2/31)
- **R4** Epping 8/125 (MW Johnson 4/21, DR Murray 2/17, PJ Cargin 2/24) lost Banyule 2/126 (AJ Stapleton 53*)
- R5 Lower Plenty 92 (BA Oliver 3/13, BM Johnson 3/13, PJ Cargin 2/15) lost to Banyule 4/93 (MP Delaney 28*)
- R6 Banyule 5/161 (GD Butterworth 46, SR Place 32, JR Lee 26*) defeated Old Paradians 9/136 (BA Oliver 2/29, GD Butterworth 2/29)
- R7 Riverside 8/155 (PJ Cargin 4/28, DR Murray 2/28) lost to Banyule 2/159 (DL Rodda 77, AJ Stapleton 32*, MP Delaney 30*)
- R8 Banyule 132 (SR Place 46) lost to Lalor Stars 1/133
- R9 Bundoora 8/119 (PJ Cargin 3/26, DR Murray 2/26) defeated Banyule 103
- R10 Epping 99 (MW Johnson 4/17, DR Murray 2/5, PJ Cargin 2/12) lost to Banyule 4/102 (JR Lee 42*)
- R11 Banyule 9/157 (JR Lee 55, MJ Jones 42) lost to Lower Plenty 6/158 (PJ Cargin 2/27)
- R12 Old Paradians 84 (NJ Aston 3/12, MC Kernaghan 2/11, PJ Cargin 2/19) lost to Banyule 7/85 (MC Kernaghan 36*)
- R13 Rosanna 7/131 (LR Hobson-Nicholls 2/6) defeated Banyule 6/130 (MP Delaney 47)
- R14 Banyule 8/170 (MP Delaney 47, MW Johnson 34, LC Sier 25) defeated Riverside 8/82 (BA Oliver 2/11, JW Veal 2/12, A Jadhav 2/13)
- **SF** Banyule 3/186 (JR Lee 73*, MW Johnson 67) defeated Lalor Stars 161 (A Jadhav 3/32, BA Oliver 2/26, DR Murray 2/26)

PF - Banyule 5/111 (SR Place 36, JW Veal 28*) lost to Lower Plenty 2/114

4 th XI (2021/22)			Е	BATTING						BOW	LING		
NAME (29 Played)	МТ	INN	NO	RUNS	HS	AVE	СТ	ov	MD	RUNS	WK	AVE	ВВ
ADAIR, Simon G	3	3	0	20	15	6.67	2	15	0	53	1	53.00	1/26
ASTON, Nicholas J	1	1	0	0	0	0.00	0	4.4	1	12	3	4.00	3/12
ATARYNIW, Cameron M	1	-					1	7	0	19	1	19.00	1/19
BROWN, Zach J	1	1	0	18	18	18.00	1	-					
BUTTERWORTH, Glenn D	2	2	0	50	46	25.00	0	7	1	29	2	14.50	2/29
CARGIN, Peter J	14	6	0	45	15	7.50	3	77.1	12	267	21	12.71	4/28
DELANEY, Luke N	1	1	1	18	18*	-	0	3	0	14	0	-	
DELANEY, Michael P	13	12	2	207	47	20.70	5	-					
DUGDALE, Isaac P	5	4	2	62	23	31.00	1	15	2	63	0	-	
FRANCIS, Sebastian R	3	2	0	3	2	1.50	0/0	-					
HOBSON-NICHOLLS, LR	3	1	0	0	0	0.00	0	14	1	40	3	13.33	2/6
HOPE, Toby E	6	6	0	31	11	5.17	3	0.1	0	0	0	-	
JADHAV, Anish	10	4	2	17	9*	8.50	6	53.2	10	172	10	17.20	3/32
JOHNSON, Brodie M	10	2	1	14	12	14.00	1	52.5	6	193	7	27.57	3/13
JOHNSON, Michael W	11	9	1	157	67	19.63	0	42	7	166	11	15.09	4/17
JONES, Marcus J	1	1	0	42	42	42.00	1	7	1	43	1	43.00	1/43
KERNAGHAN, Marcus C	4	4	1	57	36*	19.00	1	21	2	81	4	20.25	2/11
LEE, Aaron M	1	-					1	-					
LEE, Jake R	9	9	3	228	73*	38.00	3/0	-					
LEWIS, Matthew C	2	1	0	27	27	27.00	1/0	-					
McDONALD, Beau W	6	3	1	59	50*	29.50	1	11.3	0	55	2	27.50	1/15
MURRAY, Daniel R	12	5	2	34	11	11.33	0	68	5	254	14	18.14	2/5
OLIVER, Brett A	11	5	3	81	20*	40.50	2	39	7	111	10	11.10	3/13
PLACE, Sam R	7	6	0	152	46	25.33	2	2	0	28	0	-	
RENSHAW, Graeme D	10	2	2	5	3*	-	10/0	-					
RODDA, Dale L	7	7	0	159	77	22.71	7	-					
SIER, Liam C	2	2	0	46	25	23.00	1	-					
STAPLETON, Adrian J	10	9	2	146	53*	20.86	4	-					
VEAL, Jack W	10	7	4	70	28*	23.33	3	39.5	3	155	3	51.67	2/12

BANYULE 5th XI (F3 Grade) - Played 13, Won 3, Lost 10 (7th)

- R1 Banyule drew Laurimar (No Play)
- R2 Macleod 9/108 (LR Hobson-Nicholls 3/16, CM Ataryniw 3/29) lost to Banyule 7/110 (JW Veal 29*)
 R3 Rosanna 9/107 (GR Place 3/11, LG Russell 2/14, NJ Aston 2/25) lost to Banyule 2/108 (GD Cochrane 54, DR Veal 32)
- R4 Diamond Creek 150 (LG Russell 5/18) defeated Banyule 6/122 (SG Adair 48, A Jadhav 32)
- R5 Thomastown United 6/215 (LG Russell 2/26, CM Ataryniw 2/33) defeated Banyule 7/129 (GD Cochrane 44)
- R6 Bundoora 6/109 (LG Russell 3/31) lost to Banyule 3/110 (GD Cochrane 58*)

 R7 South Morang 6/180 (AJ McCaffrey 2/11, LR Hobson-Nicholls 2/28) defeated Banyule 7/101 (GD Cochrane 29)
- R8 Banyule 9/135 (DP Butterworth 55*, BL O'Connor Snr 40) lost to Macleod 5/138 (AG Simon 2/19, JA Patena-McCarthy 2/20)
- R9 Rosanna 107 (À Jadhav 4/11, BY Wilson 3/15, NJ Aston 2/21) defeated Banyule 97 (GD Cochrane 43)
- R10 Banyule 0/106 (GD Cochrane 58*, NJ Aston 46*) lost to Diamond Creek 3/110 (AJ McCaffrey 2/7)
- R11 Thomastown United 5/199 defeated Banyule 6/62
- R12 Bundoora Park 6/224 (TJ Braddy 2/41, LG Russell 2/50) defeated Banyule 6/88 (GD Cochrane 53)
- R13 Laurimar 3/259 defeated Banyule 8/95
- R14 Banyule 5/87 (BL O'Connor Snr 44*) lost to South Morang 1/88

5 th XI (2021/22)			E	BATTING						BOW	LING		
NAME (40 Played)	МТ	INN	NO	RUNS	HS	AVE	СТ	٥٧	MD	RUNS	WK	AVE	ВВ
ADAIR, Simon G	2	2	0	62	48	31.00	1	2	0	25	0	-	
ARANDT, Alexander M	1	1	0	4	4	4.00	0	2	0	28	1	28.00	1/28
ASTON, Nicholas J	9	6	3	97	46*	32.33	3	31.3	8	105	7	15.00	2/21
ATARYNIW, Cameron M	3	2	0	31	20	15.50	1	21	3	79	5	15.80	3/29
BRADDY, Tom J	3	3	2	2	1*	2.00	0	14	0	91	2	45.50	2/41
BUTTERWORTH, Darren P	1	1	1	55	55*	-	0	-					
COCHRANE, Gavin D	13	8	2	345	58*	57.50	9/2	-					
FORSYTH, Andy	1	1	0	2	2	2.00	0	-					
FORSYTH, Emilio N	1	1	0	0	0	0.00	0	1	0	6	0	-	
FRANCIS, Sebastian R	2	2	0	15	13	7.50	1	-					
HETHERINGTON, Andy A	1	1	0	20	20	20.00	0	-					
HETHERINGTON, Nat A	6	4	0	25	17	6.25	1	16	1	91	3	30.33	1/15
HOBSON-NICHOLLS, LR	5	4	0	30	12	7.50	1	28	7	92	6	15.33	3/16
HOPE, Toby E	1	1	0	17	17	17.00	1	3	0	27	0	-	
HOWELL, Alistair D	12	3	3	1	1*	-	3	16	2	54	2	27.00	1/14
JADHAV, Anish	4	3	0	43	32	14.33	1	18	2	73	6	12.17	4/11
KAPSALIS, Joshua K	5	5	0	68	23	13.60	3	4	0	36	0	1	
KERNAGHAN, Marcus C	1	-					0	ı					
KURIAKOSE, Thomas J	8	6	2	47	13	11.75	0	31.2	2	182	3	60.67	1/9
LAWTON, Bailey J	1	1	1	4	4*	-	1	-					
LEE, Aaron M	2	1	1	7	7*	-	0	-					
LEE, Jake L	5	4	1	44	23	14.67	2	-					
MARKS, Jamie A	1	1	0	4	4	4.00	0	-					
McCAFFREY, Angus J	11	8	1	21	9	3.00	3	43	6	184	6	30.67	2/7
McCAFFREY, Peter J	1	1	0	0	0	0.00	0	-					
McCARTHY, Terry M	1	1	0	1	1	1.00	0	-					
McINTYRE, Jaxon G	1	-					1	3	0	16	0	-	
MILLS, Oliver L	1	1	1	13	13*	-	0	3	0	20	0	-	
O'CONNOR, Brent L	2	2	1	84	44*	84.00	0	-					
O'CONNOR, Declan A	3	3	0	21	20	7.00	1	14	0	82	1	82.00	1/34
PATENA-McCARTHY, JA	5	4	1	9	7*	3.00	1	25	2	109	3	36.33	2/20
PAUL, Abil S	5	2	0	7	5	3.50	0	14	0	92	0	-	
PLACE, Geoff R	4	1	0	1	1	1.00	0	7	3	11	3	3.67	3/11
RUSSELL, Lindsay G	11	2	2	22	15*	-	3	48.2	5	251	14	17.93	5/18
SCHOEN, Marlon M	1	1	0	3	3	3.00	0	-					
SIMON, Alvin G	1	1	0	21	21	21.00	0	5	2	19	2	9.50	2/9
VEAL, David R	10	8	2	74	32	12.33	6	27	1	118	0	-	
VEAL, Jack W	2	2	1	31	29*	31.00	1	10	0	56	1	56.00	1/47
WILSON, Benjamin Y	6	3	1	10	10*	5.00	0	29	4	94	7	13.43	3/15
WOODMAN, Tom E	1	1	0	1	1	1.00	0	-					

BANYULE 6th XI (G2 Grade) - Played 12, Won 1, Lost 11 (8th)

- R1 Montmorency drew Banyule (No Play)
- R2 Research EC 5/123 (ER Everson 2/14, BY Wilson 2/16) defeated Banyule 4/76
- R3 North Eltham 2/239 defeated Banyule 55
- R4 Riverside 4/186 (MM Schoen 2/22, JW Kennedy 2/23) defeated Banyule 62 (A Forsyth 27)
- R5 Banyule 9/62 lost to Bundoora Park 3/64
- R6 Banyule 4/245 (AA Hetherington 51*, EN Forsyth 50*, RJ Jones 44, MJ Jones 34)) defeated Montmorency 5/204 R7 Banyule drew Diamond Creek (No Play)
- R8 Banyule 68 lost to Research EC 1/69
- R9 Laurimar 5/122 (NA Hetherington 2/28) defeated Banyule 9/110 (SG Adair 47)
- R10 Riverside 4/218 defeated Banyule 77
- R11 Banyule 118 (LC Sier 36, SG Adair 26) lost to Bundoora Park 2/119
- R12 Banyule 8/93 (DR Murray 35*) lost to Montmorency 3/95 (SJ Tuik 2/21)
- R13 Panton Hill 4/195 (SJ Tuik 2/64) defeated Banyule 103 (MM Schoen 31) R14 – Diamond Creek 3/125 (SJ Tuik 2/10) defeated Banyule 108 (RJ Jones 43)

6 th XI (2021/22)			E	BATTING						BOV	VLING		
NAME (42 Played)	MT	INN	NO	RUNS	HS	AVE	СТ	٥٧	MD	RUNS	WK	AVE	BB
ADAIR, Liam J	3	3	0	12	8	4.00	1	8	2	23	1	23.00	1/14
ADAIR, Simon G	2	2	0	73	47	36.50	1	-					
ASTON, Darren B	1	1	1	16	16*	-	0	-					
ASTON, Nicholas J	1	1	0	0	0	0.00	0	6	0	36	1	36.00	1/36
BLAND, James L	1	1	0	1	1	1.00	0	4	0	13	0	-	
BOWLER, Brad D	1	1	0	15	15	15.00	0	-					
BREWSTER, William T	1	1	0	5	5	5.00	1	3	0	11	0	-	
CONCEICAO, Dawson B	2	2	0	13	8	6.50	0	3	0	33	0	-	
DONEHUE, Gavin B	4	4	0	18	12	4.50	0	-					
DONEHUE, Patrick J	4	4	2	1	1*	0.50	0	10	1	43	0	-	
DONOGHUE, Gus J	1	1	0	0	0	0.00	0	-					
EBBAGE, Rod A	1	1	0	5	5	5.00	0	6	4	10	1	10.00	1/10
EVERSON, Elliott R	3	2	0	12	8	6.00	1	14	3	60	2	30.00	2/14
FORSYTH, Andy	7	6	0	79	27	13.17	2/0	10	0	65	0	-	
FORSYTH, Emilio N	10	8	1	117	50*	16.71	1	3	0	22	0	-	
FRANCIS-D'AMOUR, RL	1	-					0	1	0	6	0	-	
HETHERINGTON, Andy A	2	1	1	51	51*	-	1	-					
HETHERINGTON, Nat A	6	4	0	24	16	6.00	1	28	4	119	5	23.80	2/28
JONES, Marcus J	2	1	0	34	34	34.00	0	7	1	28	1	28.00	1/28
JONES, Robert J	6	5	0	98	44	19.60	4/1	-					
KAPSALIS, Joshua K	1	1	0	14	14	14.00	0	-					
KENNEDY, Jake W	3	2	0	3	3	1.50	0	16	2	74	3	24.67	2/23
KERNAGHAN, Marcus C	1	1	0	1	1	1.00	0	7	0	27	1	27.00	1/27
KURIAKOSE, Thomas J	4	3	1	21	17	10.50	1	12.3	0	82	1	82.00	1/6
LAWTON, Bailey J	5	3	0	13	5	4.33	1	14	1	93	1	93.00	1/30
MARKS, Jamie A	12	11	1	69	17*	6.90	2/0	24	0	167	2	83.50	1/36
McDONALD, Beau W	4	4	0	23	11	5.75	3	20.5	3	84	1	84.00	1/32
MELTON, Garrick F	3	3	0	35	22	11.67	0	-					
MILLS, Oliver L	2	1	0	2	2	2.00	0	3	0	24	1	24.00	1/24
MOREL, Grayson S	14	9	4	17	12	3.40	0	40	2	212	2	106.00	1/28
MURRAY, Daniel R	1	1	1	35	35*	-	0	5	3	2	1	2.00	1\2
PATENA-McCARTHY, JA	2	1	1	1	1*	-	0	2	1	1	0	-	
PAUL, Abil S	6	3	0	2	1	0.67	0	5	0	35	1	35.00	1/28
PRASAD, Jordan Y	2	1	0	5	5	5.00	1	-					
RENSHAW, Graeme D	3	2	1	12	11	12.00	1/0	-					
RUSSELL, Lindsay G	1	1	1	5	5*	-	1	4	0	27	1	27.00	1/27
SCHOEN, Marlon M	14	11	1	98	31	9.80	1	30	1	154	4	38.50	2/22
SIER, Liam C	1	1	0	36	36	36.00	0	-					
SIMON, Alvin G	1	-					0	-					
STEPHENS-BLOCK, HW	1	1	0	2	2	2.00	0	5	1	15	0	-	
TUIK, Sterling J	12	9	2	21	8	3.00	0	44	4	203	9	22.56	2/10
WILSON, Benjamin Y	2	1	1	11	11*	-	0	6	2	16	2	8.00	2/16

JUNIOR SECTION (SUMMARY & AWARDS)

JUNIOR REPORT

Junior Coordinator

At Banyule, the success of our junior program is not measured by how many premierships we won. It is about how many children participated in our great sport, how they developed their skills, and how they enjoyed their time with friends. To that end, it was one of our most successful seasons ever, with 183 participants and 18 teams, including our first ever dedicated girls' team. Special thanks must go out to all of the coaches and team managers, who for so many are the face of our club. Their commitment, kindness and knowledge are highly valued by everyone. We have such a successful junior program because of you all.

Special mention to Steve Pinner, who continues to drive our Cricket Blast program, the life blood of every junior program. Even in a Covid year, we still managed 70 participants and Steve's enthusiasm can largely be attributed to why our program is head and shoulders above other clubs. Steve was also the driving force behind the establishment of our first dedicated girls' team, and with Aaron Lambert as coach they were a huge success, only narrowly missing finals but thoroughly enjoying their time.

Alistair Howell continues to offer specialized coaching to many juniors, not for money but for the love of the sport and our club. Al is an amazing resource who quietly goes about his business but can be found in the nets most days of any week. Alistair has also been instrumental in introducing many junior players to senior cricket, where they have been able to further develop their skills.

Yes, we did win a premiership, and congratulations are extended to Simon Adair, Steve Pinner and the U12 Blue team for their amazing win in chasing 99 in a 20 over match over Epping.

The success of our club is not built around premierships, but the people that represent it, of which we are most fortunate.

Tim Braddy
Junior Coordinator

Below is a selection of different teams who wanted to contribute to our junior report:

BCC Junior Girls Cricket Report 2021/22

Wednesday November 17th was a very special day in the history of the Banyule Cricket Club, as our inaugural girls' team took the field for the first time in a match against Research-Eltham Collegians. Enthusiastically led by Coach Aaron Lambert, the Banyule girls enjoyed a wonderful season with many team and individual highlights. Amongst the 'firsts' that will go into the BCC record books;

1st wicket- Kaitlyn Gaskell (bowled)
1st run- Grace Lambert (a nice cut shot through point)
1st catch- Grace Lambert (caught & bowled)
1st win- Round 2 v North Eltham (BCC 70 def NECC 7-56)

It was wonderful to see every girl improve their skill level and game understanding so dramatically over the course of the season. What was also evident was the team spirit that saw the girls celebrate each other's achievements, show support after disappointments and play the game with great respect for their opposition. The club could not be prouder of the girls and the manner in which they represented the Banyule CC.

The season finished with the girls missing out on a spot in the finals by only .02% which works out to be only a couple of runs over the entire season. It really was an amazing effort for the team in their 1st year of competitive cricket and one that I'm sure they'll use to launch to greater heights in the seasons to come.

A special congratulations to Grace Lambert, who won the DVCA Girls L2 Batting Award... a fantastic effort Grace, we can't wait to see you in action again next season.

It would be remiss not to mention the generous support of the parents involved with our girls' team. Often thrown into the deep end and asked to score (always a challenging task), as well as assisting Aaron in setting up the ground or just getting the girls to every game by 4.30pm on a Wednesday... your commitment is very appreciated and valued. We hope you all enjoyed watching the girls have fun and make new friends.

I'd just like to conclude by thanking every girl who represented the club in this historic season. In many instances you were raw beginners and took a chance to play a game that you knew very little about! I hope

you had an absolute blast and will be back at the Bear Cave for many years to come. It feels like a vitally important part of our club was missing and you girls have filled that gap! You've no doubt set the foundation for our girl's cricket program to thrive and created a pathway for the girls that will follow you. Well done and thanks!

Congratulations to our Inaugural Banyule CC L2 Girls Team;

Stephanie Aston Bethany Cadusch Zara Flight Juliette Frazzetto Kaitlyn Gaskell Grace Lambert Scarlett Lambert Caitlin Sier Sophie Stapleton Isla Thomson

Aaron Lambert (Coach)

Steve Pinner

Girls Program Coordinator

Girls Level 2

Pre-season - They say 'You build it and they will come'. Well Steve Pinner drove the idea, built it and they came. The first training session we only had 4 girls but they were keen and enthusiastic, from there we got a couple more girls each session. A few had a bit of experience, some played backyard or beach cricket and some had done dancing and swimming. They were all were willing to try and learn, and that was all we needed.

Rd 1 - By Round 1 our list had grown to nine girls and we were ready to play. We were scheduled to play Research Eltham, who turned out to the best team in the competition and finished undefeated Premiers, at home. Kaitlyn Gaskell and Scarlett Lambert took the first ever wickets for the club and everyone had a bat. It was a fantastic first game and start to our season.

First win - Round 2 away against North Eltham Wanderers was when the 'Sea Life' team found it's vibe and got its first win. We lost 3 early wickets and were 3/3 before Sophie & Bethany slowed the game and we battered out our 20 overs to finish on 8/70. While in the field Scarlett as wicket keeping was labelled a 'crab' and the 'Sea Life' nicknames spread, as did the banter. The girls found their vibe but also their confidence and their carefree capability. And with that the wickets started to flow Juliet (1), Bethany (1), Zara (2) and Grace (3) got among the wickets, we took 2 great catches and a run out. North Eltham finished on 7/56.

Highlights:

Batting Stephanie 22, Juliet 17, Caitlin 15, Isla 14 & Sophie 12

Bowling Grace 3/4, Scarlett 2/14 Fielding Bethany, 2 catches

Grace was fortunate enough to win the DVC Association bowling trophy with 7 wickets at 10.29 a fantastic result for Grace, the team and the club.

Disappointment - Unfortunately, narrowly losing our last game meant we missed finals by percentage. However, disappointment breed's hunger and we will all be back in Season 22/23 to continue to grow and improve.

I have played cricket for too long and this season would have to be one of the most enjoyable. I wanted to say thank you to all the girls, their parents and families, it was a fantastic season and loads of fun.

Aaron Lambert

Coach

U12 Jackson

A big congratulations to the U12 (White) boys on an enjoyable 2021/22 season. After a pretty ordinary 2 years of lockdowns it was great to see the kids back outdoors, taking up the shared challenge of team sport and having fun together. This was a team of first year U12s who equipped themselves well stepping up from U10s. It's a big jump and each player provided a contribution with the bat, ball and in the field across the year which was just reward for the hard work they put in at training.

We had a fantastic start to the season winning our first 3 games and were competitive in all but 1 match. The first game was a cracker with a special shout out to Campbell Braddy bowling us to victory in a last over thriller earning himself the nickname of 'The Iceman". We came very close to making finals with 2 nail-baiting matches to finish the season where the boys fought to the end to only just fall short. Our bowling was a strength only allowing only 1 team to score over 100 runs. Pleasingly every player took a wicket.

Future Star - Toby Stevenson

Fantastic attitude towards the game and training. Put in lots of practice with his off-spinners becoming one of our key players by the end of the season.

Fielding Award - Leo Hall

Wants every ball to come to him in the field. Took 2 catches, 3 run outs and saved loads of runs. Would get his hands to half-chances most other players wouldn't get near.

Bowling Award - Miles Kendall

Fast bowler who charges in off the long run. Took 6 wickets at an average of 8 with best figures of 2/3. Miles was also reliable with the bat being our 2nd highest run scorer with 60 runs.

Batting Award - Samuel Jackson

Our most consistent batter scoring 164 runs at an average of 54. Samuel also had a successful year with the ball winning the DVCA Bowling Award in this grade taking 8 wickets.

Thanks to the parents for their support and a special shout out to Rohan Kendall for his role as Team Manager.

U12 Ryan

After enduring a few weeks of the mysterious grading process, the team got into its grove moving towards Christmas. After Christmas we had two wins and two losses. The last three games were against the top three teams. After running the first and third placed teams to within 20 and 10 runs, a wonderful win in the last game (against the second placed team) was proof of the improvement we had been showing.

There was obvious improvement from a technical perspective across the season – a show of maturity and character was on display as the team was able to alter the approach, employ strategies and listen to the direction given, resulting in new skills being put on show – we never had a collapse, we ran between wickets better than any of our opposition and our bowling was twice as good in the back half of the season compared to early on. But the most pleasing aspects were those that lay a foundation for further improvement.

Embracing pressure moments and staying calm to execute what we know works for us, quickly moving onwards and upwards after setbacks, and the absolute supportive nature of each of our players to their team mates made a real difference – this was observed and mentioned by multiple opposition coaches. And it is safe to say that every player contributed in big moments to push us onwards to our successes, there was so much enjoyment for all of the families to be there and seeing every player improve and contribute. A very rewarding season even if we did miss out on finals.

U12 Oliver/Hanvin

U12OH had a much better year than seemed likely at the outset and were somewhat unlucky not to play finals having been in the top four for most of the post-Christmas break period.

We had a number of first time cricketers link up with bottom age U12's so invariably we found ourselves competing against older boys as part of stand-alone U12 sides. That we competed so well was a reflection of how quickly and how much we improved over the course of the season. The boys were very coachable and it was excellent to see how well they adapted to team skills such as running between wickets and backing up in the field.

The enthusiasm of some including Oscar Dunne, Samuel Jacobs and Harry O'Connor was an example to others and the encouragement, effort and leadership of Rory Oliver and Mitch Conboy was also great to see.

A special thank you to Thea Oliver as team manager and all of the parents who were a wonderful support for the kids each training and match night. As only a handful of this side go up to U14 in 2022/23 the boys are well placed to build on what they achieved this season.

U12 Bourke

"You don't have to be THE best. You have to be YOUR best"

So proud of the 12B team this season and the improvement they showed this year. We inducted a few new players to the team, including a promotion from U10s, and one player's first ever cricket season.

As coach, apart from encouraging all the boys to have fun, my challenge was to improve the basics. The number of extras we gave away each week was a worry so we worked on that a lot this season to get that number down.

I also targeted fielding, and helped the boys improve their outfield work to reduce the extra runs gained by misfields and overthrows. I also ensured that I shared the batting, bowling and keeping across all players.

Highlights:

- Anand's hat trick a special moment for him but also for the team.
- In Round 4, chasing down 133 to win!
- In Round 8, defending 4/62 to win (Hat trick helped!!)
- The team was competitive in most matches this season.
- We ended up with 3 wins for the season, 2 better than last year!
- Support from the parents at training and on game day
- Family's vs boys game at the end of the season

Challenges:

- It was difficult not always having 9 players, but the boys did get to bat and bowl more.
- We didn't have a consistent home ground this season.

The season ended well with a successful presentation night at the Sir Henry Barkley Hotel with all boys and their families attending.

Thanks to everyone's support from this group and the club to make it another successful year.

Go Bears!

U16 Tuik

The season started in a great manner, a draw and narrow defeat had the lads up and about early, but Covid protocols and having to send players up at times caught us short and resulted in a change to Red division, not such a bad thing in hindsight.

Though unfortunately despite my upbeat attitude I couldn't stop some lads feeling they were demoted until "IT" happened, our maiden victory!!!! I shall always remember Abil shouting 'Sterlo... did we win?' The cogs aligned and clicked together and they were off. Unfortunately our last match was not the ending we predicted, but we walked off that field heads held high and knowing we did Banyule proud every week.

Now some formalities - I need thank Big AI, for giving me the confidence to undertake a coaching position within the club I hold so dear. I seriously wouldn't have done this if not for you mate, you let me ride along with you assisting a couple of seasons ago and planted a seed. Thank you.

To Millsy, mate our time was short but my lessons were worldly, I was a fish on the chefs chopping block, looking like the main course day 1.. and you just did your thing and took me along with you, then everything fell in place. I even made good friends in most of your team and there's a mutual respect between us all now. Thanks mate

Hethers! The man who I once called Skip, but now called 'me' Coach and backed me 1000% it was an absolute blast and one I'd do with you again anytime. As a leader in my professional career, I found you are only as good as your men alongside you - never behind. If they see your back, you are leaving them behind. I had a great man beside me here. Cheers Skip.

Das, *Maverick - The BEST manager aka Wingman, despite all your struggles with Covid, work etc, you would always be there. You always took my calls, bounced ideas with me, pointed out flaws in our game plan that I couldn't see, and even kept me honest with our rotations despite me wanting to have permanent structure at times. You always had our best interests at heart and on behalf of our U16 champions THANK YOU SO MUCH!

To Daffy, Cam, Tim and anyone else involved in the Banyule Jnrs.... ©YOU SELFLESS LEGENDS ...THANK YOU.

Thank you for your trust, belief, guidance and support all season. It's no secret I had my struggles at times, but someone was and is always there. I have learnt so much throughout this season, in the craft of cricket itself, how to manage a player to get the best out of them, how to see no negative but only positives when most would say NOPE, too hard.

But most of all I learnt about ME and what I can bring/do/achieve. None of this would be possible if not for everyone reading this email and many who aren't in the list. Thank you from my partner and me for the very unexpected and appreciated gift too, we will be sure to use it well.

Till next season. (Yes I want MORE) - Coach Sterlo out ©

U18

A challenging season in regards to wins, however the most rewarding aspect has been the great spirit of good will and fun that the team showed throughout the season. A great bunch of young men! A big thank you for the efforts of the U16 teams who boosted our on field numbers throughout the season and especially the great assistance at training from Sterling Tuik.

Awards – U18 Hetherington

Batting: Blake Karvelis - 94 runs @ 15.7 ave

Bowling: Nathanael Hetherington - 10 wickets @ 10.2 ave

Fielding: Jett Bennett – exceptional out fielding with every catch taken that went his way

Coaches Award: Michael Haynes - marked improvement in bowling and batting, clearly showed a great deal

of extra effort being made.

U18 Perugini

Batting: Zach Brown (co-captain) - 161 runs @ 23.00

Bowling: Liam Sier (co-captain) - 7 wickets @ 8.00 (and scored 51* in the last game)

Fielding: Sebastien Francis – 5 catches & 1 stumping

Coaches Award: Beau McDonald

Hat-Trick - Marcus Jones (from U16) in Round 3

Both teams would like to thank scorers, parents, siblings, spectators, as well as club officials, particularly James McIntyre (U18-P assistant TM/coach), Andrew Hetherington (U18-H co-coach), Darren Mills (U18-H co-coach), Tim Braddy (Junior Coordinator), Brad Bowler (Facilities Manager) and members of the BCC Executive committee for their assistance, support & encouragement.

Under 12 Season Report (All Sides)

Another fantastic season of cricket was enjoyed during the summer of 2021/22 with 48 boys representing the Banyule Cricket Club in five teams across the four DVCA U12 divisions (White, Red, Teal and Blue). It was wonderful to see not only the individual improvement in cricket skill in every player but also the respectful and positive manner in which they represented the club over the course of the season.

A special thanks to our coaches and team managers who guided their teams through the summer.

The success of our junior program rests heavily on the quality of our coaches and how they help to make playing the game as enjoyable as possible. At U12 level our focus is firmly on equal participation, having fun and making friends, which we measure through how many players return to our club the following season. The fact that 44 of the 48 boys who played under 12's this season are returned players from season 20/21, shows that our coaches across the board are doing a fantastic job.

While there were too many individual highlights this season to mention here, it would be remiss not to make note of **Ethan Anand**'s hattrick during a game for U12 Red- Bourke. What a wonderful achievement for a young lad who could still be playing U10's! Well done Ethan. We must also note the brilliant achievement of **Lucas Cain** in winning the DVCA U12 Blue Bowling Award, taking 8 wickets at an average of just 7. Congratulations to Lucas on a fantastic season with the ball!

Season 2021/22 also saw **Liam Adair** and **Hayden McMurray** from our U12 Blue team represent the DVCA in the Josh Browne Plate, with Liam appointed captain for the tournament and both boys performing exceptionally well. Congratulations to both Liam and Hayden, as well as **Darcy Pinner** and **Jahan Dhruve**, who made the final squad but were unable to play due to family holiday commitments.

In one of the team highlights of the U12 season saw our U12 Blue team win their Grand Final against a very talented team from Epping CC. All who were in attendance would attest that it was a high quality, nail biting game of cricket, with our boys displaying maturity beyond their years to chase down a target of 100 against a strong bowling attack. Hayden McMurray's 3/6, Darcy Pinner's 15 and Ayaan Ohri's 15 all being vital contributions to the win. Congratulations to Liam Adair, Jahan Dhruve (Co-Captains), Darcy Pinner, Hayden McMurray, Xavier Supershad, Luke Forbes, Lucas Cain, Ayaan Ohri, Liam Ricardo and Mitchell McKellar on a wonderful season that culminated with a premiership win.

To finish off, I'd like to make a special thanks to our parents, supporters and everyone who supported our U12 program this season by helping out at training, scoring, umpiring and getting the boys to each game. Our

strength as a community club is in the quality of the people involved so a heartfelt thank you for being part of the Banyule family.

We look forward to seeing you all again in season 22/23! Go Bears

Steve Pinner
U12 Coordinator

	Coach	Team Manager	Results
U18 Blue	Matt Perugini / Darren Pybus & James McIntyre	Matt Perugini	P9, W3, L6 – 6th
U18 Teal	Andy Hetherington & Darren Mills	John Haynes	P9, W0, L9 – 6th
U16 Red	Stirling Tuik	Darren Aston	P9, W2, L6, D1 – 6th
U16 Blue	Jack Arandt & Alistair Howell	Jeff Wilson	P9, W6, L3 – 4th
U14 Blue	Brent O'C onnor	Craig Hanks	P9, W5, L4 – 5th
U14 Red	Jamie Marks & Daniel Murray	Sally Spencer & Rachael Sheard	P9, W1, L8 – 8th
U14 Teal	Bailey Neilson	Peta Symons	P9, W1, L7, D1 – 6th
DVCA Renegades Girls	Aaron Lambert	-	P8, W3, L4, D1 – 5th
U12 Blue	Steve Pinner & Simon Adair	-	P11, W10, L1 – Premiers
U12 Red (OH)	Brett Oliver & Nick Hanvin	Thea Oliver	P9, W5, L4 – 6th
U12 Red (B)	Darren Bourke	Chris Ward	P8, W3, L5 – 8th
U12 Teal	Luke Ryan	Neil Cahir	P9, W3, L6 – 5th
U12 White	Nick Jackson	Rohan Kendall	P8, W3, L5 – 6th
U10 Red (R)	Simon Ross	Neralie Cadusch	P9
U10 Red (O)	Brent O'Connor	-	P8
U10 Red (W)	Hamish Wood	Jodi Cook	P8
U10 Red (C)	Justin Cheesewright	Ben Reardon	P9
U10 Red (M)	Terry McCarthy	Danielle Goodman	P9

	Batting	Bowling	Fielding Award	Coach Award				
U18 Blue	Zach Brown	Liam Sier	Sebastian Francis	Beau McDonald				
U18 Teal	Blake Karvelis	Nathanael Hetherington	Jett Bennett	Michael Haynes				
U16 Red	William Brewster	William Brewster	Leo Hobson-Nicholls	Brennan Davis & Robert Deane				
U16 Blue	Braydon O'Connor	Anish Jadhav	James Heaney	Jake Lee				
U14 Blue	Ryder McMurray	Ryder McMurray	Thomas Kuriakose	Simar Jassi				
U14 Red	Oliver Spencer	James Bland	Thomas Sheard	Jack Pearce				
U14 Teal	Jack Patena- McCarthy	Ekansh Goel	Michael Harper	Finley Jenk				
DVCA Renegades Girls	Isla Thomson	Grace Lambert	Scarlett Lambert	Stephanie Aston & Sophie Stapleton				
	Rising Star Award							
U12 Blue	Liam Adair	Luke Forbes	Liam Ricardo	Mitchell McKellar & Jahan Dhruve				
U12 Red (OH)	Rory Oliver	Oscar Dunne	Samuel Jacobs	Mitchell Conboy				
U12 Red (B)	Max Shewan	Ethan Anand	William Coulson- Bourke	James Short				
U12 Teal	Callum McLauchlan	Vraj Gandhi	Zach Davis	Ryan Fraser				
U12 White	Samuel Jackson	Miles Kendall	Leo Hall	Toby Stevenson				
U10 Red (R)	All players receive par	ticipation medals						
U10 Red (O)	All players receive par	ticipation medals						
U10 Yellow (W)	All players receive par	ticipation medals						
U10 Yellow (C)	All players receive par	ticipation medals						
U10 Yellow (M)	All players receive par	ticipation medals						
DVCA Award Winners	U12 Blue Bowling – Lu DVCA Renegades Gi		Lambert					
Junior Representative Cricket	DVCA Renegades Girls Bowling – Grace Lambert U16 Development (Dowling) Competition – Braydon O'Connor (Carlton), Jaxon McIntyre & Will Waters (Northcote) U16 Youth Premier League – Braydon O'Connor & Will Waters (North East Falcons) U15 JG Craig Shield – Alvin Simon, James Heaney & Anish Jadhav (Preston), Isaac Dugdale & Jake Lee (Plenty Valley) U16 DVCA (VMCU) – Marcus Jones U14 DVCA (VMCU) – Simar Jassi, Ryder McMurray & Ben Howard U12 DVCA (VMCU) – Liam Adair & Hayden McMurray Marcellin 1st XI – William Waters, Liam Sier & Braydon O'Connor Ivanhoe GS 1st XI – James Heaney & Jaxon McIntyre T20 Senior – Flynn Davis Premier Cricket Seniors (VCA) – Will Waters (Northcote 3rd XI) & Braydon O'Connor (Carlton 3rd XI)							

IN2CRICKET / WOOLWORTHS CRICKET BLAST PROGRAM

After another Covid delayed start to a season, the Cricket Blast summer of 2021/22, launched with great excitement on Saturday November 20 with a new group of our youngest cricketers beginning their cricket careers. It was also great to see our Bear Cubs from the previous season return for another summer of cricket action at the Bear Cave.

The 10-week program was brilliantly organised and run every Saturday morning by Zach Brown, and Connor Lennox with great support from Hayley Pinner (mentoring our next generation of girls' cricket superstars), Nick Bowler, Isaac Dugdale and Jake Kennedy. A sincere thanks to you all for your enthusiasm and patience in guiding our future stars!

Once again, the lockdown effected lead into the season effected our participation numbers, which were down on previous Covid free years. We also had a significant number of our Master Blasters from last season progress to U10 cricket rather than play a 2nd season of Cricket Blast, which is a significant positive as we aim to have as many kids as possible to continue on our Banyule cricket pathway. We certainly look forward to growing our program in both numbers and quality next season, hopefully with no Covid related issues to deal with.

A special thanks to all of our parents, guardians, grandparents and supporters as well as our senior players, who assisted our group of coaches at times during the summer.

We look forward to seeing you back next season and welcoming new families to the club for the first time.

Go Bears!

Steve Pinner
Cricket Blast Coordinator

APPENDIX - BANYULE HISTORY & AWARD WINNERS

	BANYULE CC – SENIOR PREMIERSHIPS
1 st XI (15)	1968-69 [^] (C Grade), 1976-77 (B Grade), 1979-80 (B Grade), 1983-84 (A Grade), 1984-85 (A Grade), 1987-88 (A Grade), 1988-89 (A Grade), 1989-90 (A Grade), 1992-93 (A Grade), 1994-95 (A Grade), 2000-01 (A Grade), 2001-02 (A Grade), 2007-08*, 2008-09 (A Grade), 2019-20+ (Money Shield) Runners Up x 14
2 nd XI (4)	1972-73^ (D Grade), 1994-95 (B Grade), 2005-06*, 2013-14 (D Grade) Runners Up x 9
3 rd XI (11)	1972-73^ (F Grade), 1993-94 (C Grade), 2000-01 (C Grade), 2002-03 (C Grade), 2003-04 (C Grade), 2006-07 (C Grade), 2008-09 (C Grade), 2013-14 (E Grade), 2017-18 (F1 Grade) 2018-19 (E Grade), 2019-20 (D Grade) Runners Up x 8
4 th XI (8)	1977-78 ((E Grade), 1984-85 (F Grade), 1987-88 (E Grade), 1997-98+ (E Grade), 2001-02 (E Grade), 2003-04 (D Grade), 2017-18 (G1 Grade), 2018-19 (F3 Grade) Runners Up x 7
5 th XI (2)	2018-19 (G4 Grade), 2019-20 (G3 Grade) Runners Up x 1
Vets XI (6)	2011-12 (A Grade), 2015-16 (A Grade), 2017-18 (A Grade), 2020-21 (A Grade), 2016-17 (B Grade), 2016-17 (D Grade) Runners Up x 8
•	to 2011-12); DVCA (2012-13 to Current): Rosanna Presbyterians;

BANYULE CC – JUNIOR PREMIERSHIPS							
Under 16 (10)	1974-75, 1975-76, 1981-82, 1989-90, 1991-92, 2002-03, 2004-05+,						
	2007-08, 2011-12+#, 2018-19						
Under 14 (9)	1972-73^, 1979-80, 1985-86+, 1999-00, 2001-02, 2005-06,						
	2011-12#, 2013-14, 2018-19						
Under 12 (14)	1998-99+, 2000-01, 2003-04+, 2005-06, 2006-07, 2009-10#,						
	2011-12#, 2014-15, 2015-16, 2017-18, 2019-20 (2), 2020-21,						
	2021-22						
HDCA (1967-68 to 2	2011-12); DVCA (2012-13 to Current):						
^Club known as Ro	sanna Presbyterians;						
#HDCA changed junior grades to U13/15/17;							
+Joint Premiers							

BANYULE 1st XI - 2012/13 to 2021/22 (DVCA YEARS)								
Opponent	First Played	Played	Won	Lost	Drawn	Tied		
Bundoora United	2012-13	7	3	4	0	0		
Diamond Creek	2020-21	3	1	2	0	0		
Eltham	2012-13	11	7	3	1	0		
Epping	2020-21	3	1	2	0	0		
Greensborough	2012-13	5	1	4	0	0		
Heidelberg	2012-13	12	3	9	0	0		
Hurstbridge	2012-13	4	1	3	0	0		
Lalor Stars	2012-13	10	3	6	1	0		
Lower Eltham	2020-21	3	3	0	0	0		
Lower Plenty	2013-14	7	4	3	0	0		
Macleod	2020-21	3	1	2	0	0		
Mernda	2014-15	7	4	3	0	0		
Mill Park	2014-15	6	6	0	0	0		
Montmorency	2012-13	7	2	3	2	0		
North Eltham	2013-14	7	3	4	0	0		
Old Paradians	2018-19	3	2	1	0	0		
Panton Hill	2012-13	1	1	0	0	0		
Plenty	2016-17	4	1	3	0	0		
Research Eltham Co	2017-18	3	1	1	1	0		
Riverside	2020-21	4	3	1	0	0		
Rosanna	2012-13	5	2	3	0	0		
South Morang	2012-13	2	1	1	0	0		
Thomastown	2013-14	3	2	1	0	0		
Thomastown United	2012-13	1	1	0	0	0		
Whittlesea	2012-13	3	2	1	0	0		
TOTALS		124	59	60	5	0		

	BANYU	LE 1st XI PARTNERSHIP RE	ECORDS
WKT	TOTAL	PLAYERS	YEAR
1 ST	274	MF PHILLIPS / RD McKINLAY	1995-96
2 ND	245	GW ANDERSON / M O'BRIEN	1987-88
3 RD	221	GW ANDERSON / WL GIBSON	1985-86
4 TH	237	GJ ANDERSON / BL O'CONNOR	2001-02
5 [™]	261	GJ ANDERSON / MJ VEAL	1989-90
6 [™]	138	GJ ANDERSON / PH GOULDING	1983-84
7 TH	144	BL O'CONNOR/DP BUTTERWORTH	2001-02
8 TH	96	CM CARROLL / MJ LOWER	2003-04
9 TH	87	R CAMPBELL / NJ ANDERSON	1982-83
10 TH	71	DL BARNES / SG CLAPTON	2008-09

BANYULE 1st	XI – 200	3/04 to	2021/2	2 (MyC	Cricket	Era)
Opponent	First Played	Played	Won	Lost	Drawn	Tied
Bellfield	2003-04	1	0	1	0	0
Bundoora United	2012-13	7	3	4	0	0
Diamond Creek	2020-21	3	1	2	0	0
East Ivanhoe	2003-04	15	11	3	1	0
Edinburgh	2003-04	17	11	6	0	0
Eltham	2012-13	11	7	3	1	0
Epping	2020-21	3	1	2	0	0
Greensborough	2003-04	18	10	8	0	0
Heidelberg	2003-04	37	8	27	1	1
Heidelberg West	2003-04	14	12	2	0	0
Hurstbridge	2012-13	4	1	3	0	0
Lalor Stars	2012-13	10	3	6	1	0
Lower Eltham	2020-21	3	3	0	0	0
Lower Plenty	2013-14	7	4	3	0	0
Macleod	2020-21	3	1	2	0	0
Mernda	2014-15	7	4	3	0	0
Mill Park	2014-15	6	6	0	0	0
Montmorency	2012-13	7	2	3	2	0
Nth Eltham	2013-14	7	3	4	0	0
Old Ivanhoe	2004-05	2	2	0	0	0
Old Paradians	2018-19	3	2	1	0	0
Panton Hill	2012-13	1	1	0	0	0
Plenty	2016-17	4	1	3	0	0
Research Eltham Co	2017-18	3	1	1	1	0
Riverside	2020-21	4	3	1	0	0
Rosebank	2009-10	7	2	5	0	0
Rosanna	2003-04	24	13	8	3	0
South Morang	2012-13	2	1	1	0	0
Thomastown	2013-14	3	2	1	0	0
Thomastown Utd	2012-13	1	1	0	0	0
Viewbank	2003-04	10	9	1	0	0
West Ivanhoe Utd	2003-04	9	7	2	0	0
Whittlesea	2012-13	3	2	1	0	0
TOTALS		256	138	107	10	1

	BANYULE CLUB PARTNERSHIP RECORDS								
WKT	TOTAL	PLAYERS	YEAR						
1 ST	274	MF PHILLIPS / RD McKINLAY	1995-96	1 st XI					
2 ND	245	GW ANDERSON / M O'BRIEN	1987-88	1 st XI					
3 RD	262	CS PARRY / DM GAZZOLA	1988-89	2 nd XI					
4 TH	237	GJ ANDERSON / BL O'CONNOR	2001-02	1 st XI					
5 [™]	261	GJ ANDERSON / MJ VEAL	1989-90	1 st XI					
6 [™]	158	NP BUTTERWORTH / N MANT	1991-92	3 rd XI					
7 TH	194	GJ ANDERSON / RE KERNAGHAN	2007-08	4 th XI					
8 TH	126	PA DAVIS / BM SIER	2013-14	3 rd XI					
9 TH	109	PA DAVIS / MJ HARTE	1998-99	3 rd XI					
10 TH	116	BD BOWLER / C APPLEBY	1984-85	3 rd XI					

BAN	YULE CC – 1st XI TROPHY	WINNERS (BAT/BOWL)
Year	Batting	Bowling
2021-22	Akashdeep S Cheema – 19.7	Akashdeep S Cheema – 14.6
2020-21	Brent L O'Connor – 39.0	Brent L O'Connor – 10.5
2019-20	Brent L O'Connor – 45.7	Brent L O' Connor – 7.5
2018-19	Nick P Murray – 36.3	Michael J Hannan – 15.0
2017-18	Brent L O'Connor – 43.1	Nick P Murray – 14.2
2016-17	Henry E Tyler – 28.6	Nick P Murray – 17.1
2015-16	Justin D Poyser – 22.7	Michael J Hannan – 9.8
2014-15	Paul L McMurray – 27.2	Michael J Hannan – 9.1
2013-14	Glenn D Butterworth – 28.3	Jeff N Wilson – 19.7
2012-13	Henry E Tyler – 29.0	Sam R Norman – 13.7
2011-12	Ryan J Hartnett – 25.8	Jeff N Wilson – 10.7
2010-11	Shaun M O'Connor - 25.6	Brent L O'Connor – 5.8
2009-10	Brent L O'Connor – 34.2	Brent L O'Connor – 8.1
2008-09	Brent L O'Connor – 50.7	Brent L O'Connor – 12.9
2007-08	Brent L O'Connor – 39.0	Paul L McMurray – 12.8
2006-07	Martin F Phillips – 52.3	Paul L McMurray – 13.7
2005-06	Michael A Butera – 32.6	Paul L McMurray – 12.9
2004-05	Aidan Young – 26.2	Paul L McMurray – 15.7
2003-04	Greg J Anderson – 41.9	Philip J Barnes – 11.9
2002-03	Greg J Anderson – 46.2	Brent L O'Connor – 13.0
2001-02	Greg J Anderson – 56.3	Philip J Barnes – 11.6
2000-01	Wayne L Gibson – 60.8	Philip J Barnes – 12.9
1999-00	Greg J Anderson – 52.3	Fraser G Neilson – 13.5
1998-99	Greg J Anderson – 35.5	Darren P Butterworth – 17.2
1997-98	Rodney D McKinlay – 46.3	Philip J Barnes – 18.6
1996-97	Greg J Anderson – 34.8	Philip J Barnes – 10.5
1995-96	Rodney D McKinlay – 53.2	Philip J Barnes – 13.2
1994-95	Rodney D McKinlay – 74.4	Philip J Barnes – 13.6
1993-94	Rodney D McKinlay – 48.4	Philip J Barnes – 18.1
1992-93	Graham W Anderson – 58.9	Tim P Veal – 16.4
1991-92	Graham W Anderson – 39.7	Philip J Barnes – 14.2
1990-91	Martin J Veal – 39.9	Peter H Goulding – 21.6
1989-90	Greg J Anderson – 44.4	Tim P Veal – 13.9
1988-89	Greg J Anderson – 64.3	Neil J Anderson – 13.8
1987-88	Wayne L Gibson – 48.1	Neil J Anderson – 14.7
1986-87 1985-86	Peter H Goulding – 43.4 Phiv Demetriou – 38.0	Peter H Goulding – 16.8 Neil J Anderson – 17.7
1984-85	Greg J Anderson – 49.8	Peter H Goulding – 20.3
1983-84	Greg J Anderson – 49.8	Peter H Goulding – 20.3
1982-83	Adrian Knell – 37.1	Neil J Anderson – 24.1
1981-82	Greg J Anderson – 34.6	Robert J Lloyd – 23.1
1980-81	TBC	TBC
1979-80	Rod Gurney – 36.7	Robert J Lloyd – 13.2
1978-79	TBC	TBC
1977-78	Adrian Knell – 37.1	Ken Morton – 23.9
1976-77	Rodney J Chapman – 56.9	Roger Gill – 12.3
1975-76	Ron Hayes – 33.1	Rod Gurney – 13.1
1974-75	Don Richmond – 26.6	Merv N Anderson – 14.0
1973-74	Rod Gurney – 25.4	Merv N Anderson – 11.4
1972-73	Rod Gurney – 30.2	Rod Gurney – 12.1
		, 12.1

APPENDIX - BANYULE CLUB RECORDS

BANYULE FIRST XI - RECORDS				
MOST GAMES	261* – Greg J Anderson			
HIGHEST CAREER BATTING AGGREGATE	8379* – Greg J Anderson			
HIGHEST INDIVIDUAL SCORE	167 – Rodney D McKinlay, 1995-96			
HIGHEST SEASON AGGREGATE	775 – Martin F Phillips, 1995-96			
HIGHEST PARTNERSHIP	274 - Martin F Phillips & Rodney D McKinlay, 1995-96			
HIGHEST CAREER WICKETS AGGREGATE	534 – Philip J Barnes			
BEST BOWLING IN AN INNINGS	9/52 - Darren P Butterworth, 1998-99			
BEST BOWLING IN A MATCH	12/22 – Philip J Barnes, 1995-96			
MOST WICKETS IN ONE SEASON	49 – Philip J Barnes, 1995-96 & Michael J Hannan, 2015-16			
MOST DISMISSALS BY A WK IN A SEASON	32 - Ryan J Hartnett (30/2), 2008-09			
HIGHEST TEAM SCORE	439 v Macleod, 1994-95			
LOWEST SCORE BY AN OPPONENT	42^ by Heidelberg, 2015-16			
*Not Including 1980-81 Totals, ^From 2003-04 Only				

BANYULE CRICKET CLUB ALL XI's – RECORDS				
MOST GAMES	540** - Geoff R Place, 512+ - David R Veal 458** - Graeme D Renshaw, 397+ - Bradford L Russell, 397+ - Greg J Anderson			
HIGHEST CAREER BATTING AGGREGATE	10967+ - Greg J Anderson			
HIGHEST INDIVIDUAL SCORE	207 - Darren P Butterworth, 2011-12			
HIGHEST SEASON AGGREGATE	803 – Ralph E Kernaghan, 2002-03			
HIGHEST PARTNERSHIP	274 – Martin F Phillips & Rodney D McKinlay, 1995-96			
HIGHEST CAREER WICKETS AGGREGATE	725 - Philip J Barnes			
BEST BOWLING IN AN INNINGS	9/16 – Fraser G Neilson, 2014-15			
BEST BOWLING IN A MATCH	14/22 – Fraser G Neilson, 2014-15			
MOST WICKETS IN ONE SEASON	50 – Paul A Davis, 2015-16			
HIGHEST TEAM SCORE	8/467 v St James, 1990-91 (4th XI)			
LOWEST SCORE BY AN OPPONENT	13 by Rosanna, 2019-20 (4 th XI)			
+Not Including 1978-79 & 1980-81 Totals, **Not Including 1978-79 & 1980-81 and pre 1972-73 Totals. Does Not Include Junior Section Records				

BANYULE CC – 1st XI Player Register					
Playing No	Debut	Name	Playing No	Debut	Name
1-11	-	*Rese	rved for Unkn	own Former F	Players
12	1960	PARK, Bruce	120	1990/91	CARROLL, Paul A
13	1960	GILL, Norm	121	1991/92	BUTLER, Scott D
14	1963	BAKER, Geoff	122	1991/92	McKINLAY, Rodney D
15	1963	BURGESS, Alan	123	1991/92	ROBERTS, Nick P
16	1963	CROSS, Geoff	124	1991/92	ASHCROFT, Tony D
17	1963	HILL, Kevin	125	1992/93	GANNON, Ashleigh
18	1963	JOHNSTON, David	126	1993/94	REID, Sean D
19	1964	BUCHANNAN, Alan	127	1993/94	WILSON, David J
20	1964	POLLOCK, Duncan	128	1994/95	NEILSON, Fraser G
21	1964	RENSHAW, Graeme D	129	1994/95	WILSON, Jeff N
22	1965	BLANCHE, Robert	130	1994/95	BUTTERWORTH, Darren P
23	1966	DRAYTON, Lyle	131	1995/96	HEYWOOD, Rowan
24	1966	GURNEY, Euan	132	1996/97	BUTTERWORTH, Glenn D
25	1966	OLDIS, Maurice	133	1996/97	CANESTRA, John
26	1968	ANDERSON, Merv N	134	1996/97	STACEY, Chris
27	1968	BARBER, David	135	1996/97	CRAWFORD, lan L
28	1968	BURRISS, Ian	136	1996/97	COATES, David
29	1968	CHAPPLE, Brian	137	1997/98	CARROLL, Chris M
30	1968	HALES, Ron	138	1997/98	LOWER, Matthew J
31	1968	SCOTT, Fred	139	1998/99	TAYLOR, Chris
32	1969	GURNEY, Rod	140	1999/00	O'CONNOR, Brent L
33	1969	McCOLL, Geoff	141	1999/00	FELTHOUSE, Russell
34	1969	MORCOM, Rick	142	1999/00	DAVIS, Paul A
35	1969	TREWEEK, Bruce	143	1999/00	O'RYAN, Matthew J
36	1970	PROCTOR, Merv	144	1999/00	KEANE, Joel
37	1971	CHAPMAN, Rodney J	145	2000/01	POYSER, Luke J
38	1972	GILL, Roger	146	2001/02	HARTE, Damian M
39	1972	MIDDLETON, John	147	2001/02	BROWN, Adrian R
40	1972/73	ANDERSON, Graham W	148	2002/03	BARNES, Daniel L
41	1972/73	CLIFFORD, Stephen	149	2002/03	POYSER, Justin D
42	1972/73	MAHAR, John	150	2002/03	WILSON, Brent
43	1972/73	PETERSEN, David	151	2002/03	YOUNG, Aidan
44	1972/73	WILLIAMS, Gary	152	2002/03	ELWORTHY, Steve R
45	1972/73	RAINES, Geoff	153	2003/04	KARASMANIS, John A
46	1972/73	OXNAM, Paul	154	2003/04	STUART, Andrew M
47	1972/73	MORTON, Ken	155	2003/04	CLAPTON, Andrew S
48	1973/74	GILLIES, Mark	156	2003/04	KERNAGHAN, Marcus C
49	1973/74	GURNEY, Bruce	157	2004/05	JOHNSON, Michael W
50	1973/74	TRETHOWAN, Ian	158	2004/05	McMURRAY, Paul L
51	1973/74	RENWICK, Gavin	159	2004/05	KAZI, Waheed
52	1973/74	KNELL, Adrian	160	2004/05	TAYLOR, Luke
53	1973/74	ANDERSON, Neil J	161	2004/05	WILLOUGHBY, Lucas A
54	1973/74	SMITH, Steve	162	2004/05	BARNES, Peter D
55	1973/74	WILKINSON, D	163	2005/06	BUTERA, Michael A
56	1974/75	KEECH, lan	164	2005/06	CLAPTON, Scott G
57	1974/75	GREEN, Graeme	165	2005/06	HARTNETT, Ryan J
58	1975/76	DALZIEL, Andrew	166	2006/07	BENNETT, Graham D
59	1975/76	TROTTER, Phillip	167	2006/07	BEVAN, Rhys A
60	1975/76	IVANOFF, Nick	168	2006/07	YOUNG, Joshua
61	1975/76	RUSSELL Brad L	169	2007/08	DAVEY, Peter E
62	1975/76	VEAL, Robert J	170	2007/08	HARTE, Michael F
63	1975/76	CERCHI, Graeme	171	2007/08	MELTON, Garrick F
64	1975/76	HENDERSON, Alan	172	2007/08	SERAFIN, Joseph A
65	1976/77	HAYES, Ron	173	2007/08	DELANEY, Michael P
66	1976/77	SCOWN, Peter	174	2008/09	NORMAN, Sam R

67	1976/77	LEWTHWAITE, Michael	175	2008/09	WOODMAN, Tom E
68	1976/77	GOWER, Wayne	176	2008/09	ARORA, Arjun
69	1976/77	-	McKINLAY, Daryl 177		HODGES, Matthew
70	1977/78	McTAGGART, Graeme	178	2008/09 2009/10	O'CONNOR, Shaun M
71	1977/78	VEAL, Andrew C	179	2009/10	SAMAD, Jordan
72	1977/78	COOPER, Bernard	180	2009/10	TYLER, Henry E
73	1977/78	PAGE, Steven R	181	2010/11	HANNAN, Michael J
74	1977/78	POWELL, Wayne	182	2010/11	BARNES, William G
75	1978/79	ANDERSON, Mal	183	2010/11	DAHL, Les D
76	1978/79	CAMPBELL, Rodney	184	2011/12	DOHERTY, Shane
77	1978/79	KELLY, Tony	185	2011/12	BARNES, Joshua D
78	1978/79	LLOYD, Robert J	186	2011/12	PLACE, Sam R
79	1979/80	ANDERSON, Greg J	187	2011/12	DELANEY, Luke N
80	1979/80	HOWATT, Graeme	188	2012/13	OLIVER, Brett A
81	1979/80	GIBSON, Wayne L	189	2012/13	SMITH, Jake E
82	1981/82	BUTTERWORTH, Neal P	190	2012/13	SIER, Bill M
83	1981/82	McKEON, Mark P	191	2013/14	CAMPBELL, Darcy A
84	1981/82	SAYERS, Andrew	192	2013/14	ITALIA, Michael J
85	1981/82	POYSER, Steven J	193	2013/14	NOURISH, Dylan R
86	1981/82	RIZK, George	194	2013/14	GLOVER, Paul
87	1981/82	ATKINS, Steve	195	2013/14	ELMER, Thomas D
88	1981/82	O'BRIEN, Matthew	196	2013/14	GLOVER, John
89	1981/82	CLIFFORD, Paul	197	2014/15	MURRAY, Nick P
90	1982/83	ROBERTSON, Peter H	198	2014/15	MALCOLM, Ryan A
91	1982/83	FRAUMANO, Marcus J	199	2014/15	De MARIA, Robert A
92	1983/84	GOULDING, Peter H	200	2015/16	McGILLION, Oliver A
93	1983/84	VEAL, David R	201	2015/16	TOLLEY, Zac S
94	1983/84	JONES, Mark	202	2015/16	RODDA, Dale L
95	1983/84	APPLEBY, Chris	203	2015/16	BATCHELDER, Ryan C
96	1984/85	BRADDY, Greg	204	2016/17	STANNARD, Jack W
97	1984/85	VEAL, Tim P	205	2016/17	NEILSON, Bailey L
98	1985/86	DEMETRIOU, Phiv	206	2016/17	GASKIN, Thomas M
99	1985/86	McINTOSH, Andrew	207	2016/17	HANNAN, Jeremy A
100	1985/86	PARRY, Craig S	208	2016/17	ALEXANDROV, James K
101	1986/87	ADAMS, Peter T	209	2016/17	ATARYNIW, Cameron M
102	1986/87	BOWLER, Bradley D	210	2018/19	ARANDT, Jack W
103	1986/87	GAZZOLA, Chris L	211	2018/19	MOONEY, Sam P
104	1986/87	GAZZOLA, David M	212	2019/20	CROOK, Joel
105	1986/87	VEAL, Martin J	213	2019/20	SAMAD, Adam
106	1987/88	GERAGHTY, Brad	214	2019/20	STAPLES, Sam T
107	1987/88	BARNES, Greg P	215	2019/20	VEAL, Spencer J
108	1988/89	ARANDT, Greg J	216	2019/20	McINERNEY, Grant J
109	1988/89	LAST, Danny	217	2020/21	MILLS, Darcy D
110	1988/89	PARRY, Rohan D	218	2020/21	MAHER, Jeremy C
111	1988/89	FRANKE, Carol	219	2020/21	LEWIS, Alex
112	1988/89	RUSSELL, Greg D	220	2020/21	ASBURY, Callum W
113	1988/89	McCAUSLAND, Kristian D	221	2021/22	CHEEMA, Akashdeep S
114	1988/89	PARRY, Andrew T	222	2021/22	HALL, Thomas C
115	1989/90	DAVIDSON, Simon	223	2021/22	ROSS, Noah T
116	1989/90	BARNES, Philip J	224	2021/22	KENNEDY, Daryl A
117	1989/90	PINNER, Steven M	225	2021/22	LENNOX, Connor
118	1990/91	CHOWDARY, Feroze	226	2021/22	SIMON, Ayush A
119	1990/91	PHILLIPS, Martin F	227	2021/22	NEILSON, Joshua A

HDCA COMPETITION AWARD WINNERS				
1988-89 - Neil Butterworth (B)	2006-07 – Brent O'Connor (A)			
1994-95 - Philip Barnes (A)	2006-07 - Bradford Russell (C)			
2000-01 - Russell Felthouse (B)	2007-08 – Paul Davis (B)			
2003-04 – Brent O'Connor (A)	2008-09 – Brent O'Connor (A)			
2004-05 – Ralph Kernaghan (D)	2011-12 – Graham Clapton (D)			
2005-06 – Greg Barnes (C)	Life Member – Don Richmond			

BANYULE CLUB CHAMPION (1991-92 Onwards)					
1991-92	G.R. Russell	2002-03	R.E. Kernaghan	2013-14	P.A. Davis
1992-93	G.R. Russell	2003-04	P.A. Davis	2014-15	F.G. Neilson
1993-94	N.P. Butterworth	2004-05	R.E. Kernaghan	2015-16	P.A. Davis
1994-95	P.J. Barnes	2005-06	P.L. McMurray	2016-17	M.J. Hannan
1995-96	P.J. Barnes	2006-07	B.L. O'Connor	2017-18	B.L. O'Connor
1996-97	R.D. Parry	2007-08	B.L. O'Connor	2018-19	P.A. Davis
1997-98	K.D. McCausland	2008-09	B.L. O'Connor	2019-20	B.L. O'Connor
1998-99	P.A. Davis	2009-10	B.L. O'Connor	2020-21	B.L. O'Connor
1999-00	D.R. Veal	2010-11	B.L. O'Connor	2021-22	J.G. McIntyre
2000-01	M.F. Harte	2011-12	J.N. Wilson		
2001-02	B.L. O'Connor	2012-13	G.D. Butterworth		

GRAEME RENSHAW MEDAL (1997-98 Onwards)				
1997-98	B.M. Sier	2010-11	P.L. McMurray	
1998-99	P.A. Davis	2011-12	J.N. Wilson	
1999-00	D.P. Butterworth	2012-13	H.E. Tyler / M.C. Kernaghan	
2000-01	R. Felthouse	2013-14	P.L. McMurray	
2001-02	B.L. O'Connor	2014-15	P.A. Davis	
2002-03	R.E. Kernaghan	2015-16	M.J. Hannan	
2003-04	B.L. O'Connor	2016-17	G.D. Bennett / S.G. Clapton	
2004-05	R.E. Kernaghan	2017-18	B.L. O'Connor	
2005-06	P.L. McMurray	2018-19	M.J. Hannan	
2006-07	B.L. O'Connor	2019-20	B.L. O'Connor / G.R.Place	
2007-08	P.A. Davis / G.G. Clapton	2020-21	B.L. O'Connor	
2008-09	B.L. O'Connor	2021-22	G.D.Cochrane / J.G.McIntyre	
2009-10	B.L. O'Connor			

APPENDIX - SPONSORS

BANYULE CRICKET CLUB THANKS ALL ITS SPONSORS & CLUB PARTNERS FOR THEIR SUPPORT IN 2021-22